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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
“Director”) of Perfect Group International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), it is my pleasure to present to
you the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2016.

Business Outlook and Future Prospects

As a result of the weak global market sentiment for high-end
fine jewelry products, which had affected the performance
of 2015 and 2016, 2016 continued to be a challenging year
for the Group. On the other hand, the Board of Directors
expects that there will be a continued demand for luxury
goods including high-end fine jewellery in the PRC resulting
from its steady GDP growth rate and growth in purchasing

power.

In view of the aforesaid, the Board has resolved to re-allocate
approximately HK$44.34 million out of the unutilised net
proceeds originally intended for expanding the Middle East
and European high-end markets and upgrading the existing
production facilities and hiring and training additional
labour to establishing the headquarter in the PRC and
developing the PRC market. The Board is of the view that
such re-allocation of unutilised net proceeds is in line with
the Group’s business strategy on diversification of customer

base in order to reduce geographical and seasonality risks.
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In February 2017, as part of the relocation process to
establish a headquarter in the PRC and to respond to the
impending expiry of the lease agreement of the processing
factory in Dongguan City, Guangdong Province in 2018,
and also in order to leverage the presence of a large number
of local small and medium enterprises on the jewelry
industry chain in Lunjiao Shilong Industrial Zone, Shunde
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, the
Group, with an establishment of a joint venture, acquired
the land use right of approximately 100,370 metres of land
in Lunjiao Shilong Industrial Zone, at a consideration of
approximately RMB105.3 million. It is expected that the
Group, after completion of the development, will relocate
the processing factory to and establish the headquarter of
the Group in the Lunjiao Shilong Industrial Zone which
will provide the Group with a more perpetual location and
platform for its future business development in the PRC.
It is intended that approximately 264,000 square meters of
the land will be allocated for the Group’s use as its factory
plants and approximately 36,000 square meters of the land
will be used as ancillary facilities such as dormitories and

canteens.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my gratitude
to our shareholders, business partners and consumers
for their great support, and I also want to appreciate
all employees of the Group for their hard work and
contributions in the past year. I hope we achieve a better

future through the joint effort.

Kan Kin Kwong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is one of the top fine jewellery manufacturers
and wholesalers with approximately 30 years of history in
Hong Kong. The Group is primarily engaged in designing,
manufacturing and sales of high-end fine jewellery
(primarily mounted with diamonds). The Group positions
its products to target the high-end segment of the fine

jewellery market by average wholesale price.

The Group operates two offices, situated in Hong Kong
and Dubai respectively. The Hong Kong office bridges
the design, production and sales teams with the customers
worldwide whilst the Dubai office serves as the marketing
and logistic hub in the Middle East and its vicinity. The
production operations are exclusively carried out at a
processing factory in Dongguan (“Perfect Factory”) under
the processing agreement. As at the date of this report,
Perfect Factory is controlled by Perfect Group International
Holdings (HK) Limited (“Perfect Group HK”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Under the processing
agreement, Perfect factory deploys raw materials, accessories,
machinery equipment and packaging materials owned
and imported by the Group to produce fine jewellery
products for the Group exclusively whilst the Group closely
participates in the operation and management of Perfect

Factory and effectively controls its decision making process.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016
was approximately HK$322.4 million (2015: HK$458.3
million), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$135.9 million or 29.7% over the corresponding year
of 2015. The decrease in the Group’s revenue was primarily
due to the continuing weak global market sentiment and the
consequential decrease in demand for the Group’s high-end

fine jewelry products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The sales of each product types were all affected by the
weak global market demand. The sales of ring and earrings,
which accounted for 32.8% and 28.6% respectively of
the sales for the year, have dropped from approximately
HK$171.0 million and approximately HK$128.5 million
respectively to HK$105.7 million and HK$92.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2016 respectively,
which represented a drop of approximately 38.2% and
approximately 28.4% respectively. The other products,
pendant and bangle, which formed 11.0% and 10.3% of
the revenue for the year, also dropped from approximately
HK$51.8 million and HK$42.9 million to approximately
HK$35.6 million and HK$33.2 million respectively, which
represented a drop of 31.2% and 22.5% respectively.

The sales to Hong Kong drop from approximately
HK$203.5 million to HK$187.6 million, representing a
decrease of 7.8%. The revenue to Dubai and others has
significantly dropped from approximately HK$254.8
million to HK$134.8 million, representing a decrease of
47.1%. The management considers that this may be due to
the drop in demand in high end jewelleries in line with the

decrease in income of this region.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit dropped from approximately HK$132.1
million to approximately HK$88.9 million which was in
line with the drop in revenue. Despite the drop in gross
profit, gross profit margin was maintained at similar level for
the year ended 31 December 2016 of 27.6% (2015:28.8%)

mainly due to more stringent cost control on production.

Other income

Other income of approximately HK$1.4 million increased
from approximately HK$0.6 million mainly due to the

increase of scraps sales and interest income during the year.
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Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses included the allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$2.0 million (2015: nil) against
long outstanding accounts receivables in line with the

Group’s accounting policy.

Operating expenses

The selling and distribution costs of approximately
HK$13.6 million (2015: HK$14.2 million), maintained
at similar level as 2015. These costs did not decrease in
line with the decrease in turnover as the cost of exhibition
expenses and regular overseas business trip expenses, which
contributed to a significant portion of the cost, were mostly

fixed in nature.

The general and administrative and other expenses decreased
from approximately HK$51.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 to approximately HK$34.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016. This was mainly due to
the decrease in the initial public offering expenses in 2016
compared with approximately HK$16.8 million spent in
2015 and the reduction of depreciation for the amount of
approximately HK$2.1 million following the distribution of
land and building on initial public offering process which
was partially offset by the increase in rent for the lease on

operation.

Profit for the year

As a result of the above factors and the reduction in taxation
charges, profit for the year was approximately HK$34.7
million (2015: HK$56.5 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 38.5%.
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Financial position

There is no significant addition of plant and equipment
during the year. However, the Group has paid a refundable
deposit of RMB25 million (equivalents to approximately
HK$28.3 million) for the formation of a joint venture
and acquisition of land use right, the balance of which
was still outstanding as at 31 December 2016. Following
successful bidding of the land through the joint venture on
15 February 2017, the deposit will be used as settlement
of part of the RMB105,390,000 consideration for the land
investment to the project. Further details on the formation
of joint venture and acquisition of lands could be found
in the circular dated 7 February 2017 and announcement
dated 15 February 2017.

Inventory of approximately HK$169.2 million has been
maintained at a similar level as last year amounted to

approximately HK$179.1 million.

As a consequence of the decrease in turnover and purchases,
the trade receivables and trade payables decreased
accordingly. Trade receivables decreased from approximately
HKS$116 million as at 31 December 2015 to approximately
HK$74.4 million as at 31 December 2016 and trade
payables decreased from approximately HK$12.1 million to
approximately HK$6.3 million, representing a decrease of
35.9% and 48.3% respectively.

Other borrowing included a loan obtained in September
2016 to finance the refundable deposit for acquisition of
lands. The deposit was refunded and other borrowing was
settled in March 2017.

To facilitate the financing of the operation of the Group,
the Group has also entered into certain banking facilities in
the form of trust receipt loans, which, as at 31 December,
2016, has an outstanding balance of approximately HK$2.4
million (2015: nil).
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Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$479,138,000 (2015: HK$347,058,000)
which comprised bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$202,567,000 (2015: HK$41,209,000). As at 31
December 2016, the current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$72,715,000 (2015: HK$338,977,000).
Accordingly, the current ratio, being the ratio of current
assets to current liabilities, was approximately 6.6 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: 1.0).

The financial resources for the operation of the Group were
mainly derived from the net cash inflows of approximately
HK$83.6 million (2015: HK$81.7 million) from operating
activities. Taking into consideration the existing financial
resources of the Group, the Directors believe that the Group
has adequate working capital to support its operations and

development requirements.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as net debt
(including accruals and other payables, amount due to
a related company, bank loans and other borrowing)
divided by the total equity, was approximately 13.4%
(2015: 2,179.8%). The significant decrease in gearing
ratio was mainly due to a debts of HK$282,103,000 which
represented the consideration of the business transfer from
Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery Company Limited to Perfect
Group International Holdings (HK) Limited (the “Perfect
(HK)”) recorded as amount due to a related company as at
31 December 2015 has been capitalized. Such debts had not
been settled by Perfect (HK) as at 31 December 2015 but
has been capitalised after 31 December 2015 and prior to
the Listing on 4 January 2016.

However, based on the calculated total borrowings
(including bank loans and other borrowing) divided by
the total equity, the gearing ratio was approximately 7.4%
(2015: Nil).
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Foreign exchange exposure

During the year, certain group entities have foreign currency
denominated sales and purchases; and monetary assets and
liabilities which expose the Group to foreign currency risks
on the currencies of HKD, USD, RMB, and AED. The sales
are primarily made in USD while the expenses, including
purchase of raw materials are mainly in USD and HKD with
immaterial portion of cost, primarily being staff cost and
factory overheads, in RMB.

Despite the expenses are mainly settled in HKD and
USD and substantial portion of the sales and expenses are
made in either USD or HKD, with HKD and AED being
pegged with the USD, the impact of fluctuation of USD
to the operational and financial performance would be
immaterial, hence the Group’s exposure to currency risk is
not significant.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The followings are the key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other
risks and uncertainties in addition to those known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn

out to be material in the future.

Business and Financial Risks

(i) The profitability and financial position may be
materially and adversely affected if any of our major

customers ceases their business relationship with us;

(ii) The business and financial position may be materially
and adversely affected if there is a global economic
downturn, in particular, in the Middle East market;

and

(iii) We are susceptible to material and adverse change in
the Hong Kong tax laws or unfavourable interpretation
regarding apportionment claim of profits in cross-

border processing business.
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Operational Risks

The reliance on Perfect Factory for production of products
under the Processing Agreement renders the operation
vulnerable to any disruption or cessation of operation
of Perfect Factory for whatever reason, including the
breakdown of essential machinery or equipment, labour
disputes, inclement weather and natural disasters and other
factors that are beyond the control of the Group, and also
non-compliance of the applicable laws and regulations by

Perfect Factory.

Charge on Assets

There was no charge in the Group’s assets as at 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Capital commitments

The Group had no material capital commitments as at 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies

Save as disclosure in the section Subsequent event, during
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not have
any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and

affiliated companies.
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Employee and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately
234 employees (2015: 296 employees) in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The total salaries and related costs for the
year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately
HK$40.4 million (2015: HK$42.0 million).

The Group offered competitive remuneration package as
an incentive to staff to improve the work performance. The
Company has share option scheme in place as a means to
encourage and reward the eligible employees’ (including the
Directors of the Company) contributions to the Group’s
performance and business development based on their
individual performance. During the year, no options have
been granted. The employees’ remuneration, promotion and
salary are assessed by reference to their work performance,
working experiences, professional qualifications and the

prevailing market practice.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Subsequent event

On 15 February 2017, the Company has through the
joint venture won the bidding for the land use right for
the consideration of approximately RMB105.3 million for
the purpose of establishing the headquarter in the PRC
and developing the PRC market. Further details of the
transaction could be found in the announcement dated 13
January 2017 and the circular dated 7 February 2017.
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Use of proceeds from the global offering A BR 9% A 04 B 45 5K JH AL O&

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had utilised N20164F12H31H » AR 28 L 2 Fris
approximately HK$12.10 million of net proceeds from TH I ##712,100,000%5 7 © 1220164F11 H28H » #
the Listing. On 28 November 2016, the Board resolved FE Rk b TR RE &
to change the proposed use of the net proceeds from the A BR BT A5 K TE R R 2 U R i~ P A KE
Listing, and details of the original allocation of the net T2 RAEHT 2 BE B 20165F 12 31 H B 453 50 JH 3
proceeds, the revised allocation of the net proceeds, and the B ARSI

utilisation of the net proceeds as at 31 December 2016 are

set out below:

Utilisation Remaining
as at balance
Original Revised 31 December after revised
Uses & allocation allocation 2016 allocation
A20164E
JF St A H) 12H31H  B{E5] 4 Bl
il AW ZHHENR Z B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
T T T T T T
Expanding the Middle East and % 70 R TR T N o T 3
European high-end markets 28,700 7,700 6,008 1,692
Upgrading the existing production THARBA A SO DA R )
facilities and hiring and JexEalgEs B T
training additional labour 25,179 1,839 1,839 -
Brand development i WL i 16,837 16,837 1,539 15,298
Enhancing the CRM system RAXFHBERRR 3,597 3,597 494 3,103
Additional working capital and HAMVEEE B R A — R
other general corporate purposes R & 2,220 2,220 2,220 -
Establishing the headquarter in the PRC 7 H? B i 7. 48 48 % B %
and developing the PRC market w8 i 4 - 44,340 - 44,340
Total Mt 76,533 76,533 12,100 64,433
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The business objectives, future plans and planned use of
proceeds as stated in the prospectus dated 22 December
2015 (the “Prospectus”) were based on the best estimation
and assumption of future market conditions made by the
Group at the time of preparing the Prospectus. The uses
of proceeds were applied in accordance with the actual
development of the market. As of the date of this reporrt,
the Directors are not aware of material change to the
planned use of the proceeds from the plan as stated in the
announcement dated 28 November 2016. The Directors
will constantly evaluate the Group’s business objective and
will change or modify plans against the changing market

condition to ascertain the business growth of the Group.

All the unutilised balances have been placed in licensed

banks in Hong Kong.

A E H W A2015F12 22 H B AR (T3 1
AR ) Iy E R - SRR E ) K S RO
T T A T A i R TR e TR S A R T LI
AL T ARG AS o S S H O IR IEH I 5
IRV A - AR B BRI
H#A%20164F 11 H 28 H 1922 4 T ik 51 #1 19 r 45 3K
TH B2 Hm A AR K528 o 3 F R B AL 4
A 1 ZEHE E AR o IO A9 0 T S AL 5 o B RT R
B WEAAREE M ERHE -

JIv AT 140 R B D 9 465 B 2 A OIS 7 i B R R R AT
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Executive Directors

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong, aged 57, was appointed as the
Director in June 2015 and was appointed as the chairman
of the Board and the chief executive officer, and designated
as the executive Director in August 2015. Mr. Kan is the
founder of the Group and was appointed as a director of
HK Perfect in October 1986. Mr. Kan is also the director
of Perfect (BVI) and Perfect Group HK, the wholly-owned
subsidiaries. Mr. Kan is mainly responsible for managing the
overall operations of the Group and planning our business
development and strategies, in particular, overseeing the
business activities of the Group, supervising the operations
and resources allocation of the Group and driving the

Group to attain performance targets.

Mr. Kan has over 30 years of experience in the fine jewellery
industry. Currently, Mr. Kan is the first honorary president
of the Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association,
the 18th honorary president of the Hong Kong Jade
Association, the vice president of the Hong Kong Gold and

Silver Ornament Workers & Merchants General Union.

Ms. Shek Mei Chun, aged 52, the wife of Mr. Kan, was
appointed as the executive Director in August 2015. Mrs.
Kan was appointed as a director of HK Perfect in March
1990. Mrs. Kan is mainly responsible for managing the
sales operations of the Group, in particular, overseeing the
sales activities of the Group, leading the sales team to attain
sales targets and devising sales plans based on the varying

demands and customer behaviour in different markets.

Ms. Shek has over 25 years of experience in the fine
jewellery industry and completed form five at Mu Kuang

High School in July 1982.

# R B P B g A

PuAT P

ek > 57 > 2015 Fc H BT A # H
A 20154F-8 H M ZAT £y 3 & 1 AT ELAR AR >
7 988 2 2 AT EE R o i S A R S Y A1
N> iR 1986 F10H BRI B SRE N EF - fif
Je A TR By A RS > m)OREE (50 I BRI ) SR
BWEMABNES - it T EATBETHEAEER
R SEHS DA S S R R SR > U HE S B
AL W R B B AR A SR R
DL R A AR B A B o

il 510 A 7 B B B S MR A 304 A8 B - SR H
A EBEOMEEE RBER - FELEMN
FETNELEEREEEEME M LA el
TR

GEB L 5258 B2 FET - R2015F8H
WRERBPATES - fIRKIR 199043 H R AR
BHREMES - AR FEAREHEAEANE
W UHE BMEAREEMNEES - AHEME
9] o BT L B 4 R ST AR R AN (7] T 3 ) AS ) 7 R %
5T B ) A e T .

AL R A @254 AR B R 19824F
7 A FE 586 T 30 E B 58 A AR AR o
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Mr. Chung Chi Keung, aged 55, was appointed as the
executive Director in August 2015. Mr. Chung joined HK
Perfect as an accountant in March 1990. Mr. Chung was
appointed as a director of HK Perfect in November 2006.

Mr. Chung was awarded a higher stage certificate for
proficiency in accounting and a certificate of proficiency
in cost accounting, both issued by the London Chamber
of Commerce and Industry in 1982 and 1985 respectively.
Mr. Chung also passed the intermediate examination of
the Association of Accounting Technicians in December
1991. Mr. Chung has over 30 years of experience in the

accounting industry.

Non-executive Director

Mr. He Dingding, aged 40, was appointed as the non-
executive Director in March 2017. Mr. He is mainly
responsible for providing independent advice and
participating in meetings of our Board in connection with
matters requiring Directors’ consideration and/or approval.
Mr. He has more than 12 years of extensive experience in
capital markets, corporate finance, investment and finance
through working in investment banks and advisory firms
in Singapore and Hong Kong since 2005. Mr. He was the
independent non-executive director with China Kangda
Food Company Limited, a company listed on the mainboard
of both Hong Kong Stock Exchange and Singapore Stock
Exchange between 2012 and 2015. Mr. He graduated from
Nanyang Technological University with a bachelor’s degree
in civil engineering. Mr. He was awarded the CFA Charter
by the CFA Institute in September 2006.

SERRER e > 55k > h20154E8 A ERAT A AT
2o $EA 1990453 A Jin B AR B R E S AT & Rt
Fili o 455428 20064F 11 A ERAT B R BS R E -

§8 515 HE 43 1l 19824F T2 19854 18 45 fif 55 L 7 /i &
MERE TR EERE LN A G B HEE
F oo FEEAE TR 199147 12 A 38 i & 51 Bl & 1 &
HRAERR A o ST R B R A 30K
B o

FPfTHES

BT T %% 405% > R20174E3H M & AT B FE
frd o BoeAd F A RIRME L E R KSR
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20054 2325 8 i 37 0 3k B B s 2 10E SRAT K
B AR AR EAT S - RS - 8E &
Y5 TR 1 24F 2 MR AR R o B oA R 20124F &
201 5%4F 1A [H] 2% m B0 e K & A BR 2 | 2 8 S FE L
TTH I > B0 AL A WS Bk 38 P 3 Al BT I i 75 5
285 BT BT o B Sk R v B LR B > A
TARTRRE B o B e IR 2006479 H 45 5F
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Fan Chor Ho, aged 74, was appointed as the

independent non-executive Director in December 2015.

Mr. Fan began his securities brokerage business in 1970 and
founded Paul Fan Securities Limited, a company engaging
in securities brokerage, in 1987. Mr. Fan was the chairman
of Paul Fan Securities Limited until 2012. Mr. Fan served
the Stock Exchange as a member of the compensation
committee from 1988 to 1992 and as a council member
from 1990 to 1993. From 1993 to 1997 and from 2001 to
2007, Mr. Fan was a member of the advisory committee
to the SFC. From April 2000 to April 2003, Mr. Fan
was a non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited. Mr. Fan held various positions on
government boards and committees, including the chairman
of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong from
September 2005 to September 2011. Mr. Fan has been
an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong
International Construction Investment Management Group
Co., Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange stock
code: 687), since August 1993 and is currently the chairman
of the audit committee, a member of remuneration
committee and a member of the nomination committee of
such company. Mr. Fan was awarded the Badge of Honour
in 1991, made a Justice of the Peace in 1993, awarded
the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2005 and awarded the Silver
Bauhinia Star in 2011.

Mr. Li Cheuk Wai, aged 45, was appointed as the

independent non-executive Director in December 2015.

Mr. Li received a bachelor’s degree in social science from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong May 1995 and a
bachelor’s degree in laws from the University of London in
August 2000. Mr. Li obtained the postgraduate certificate in
laws issued by the University of Hong Kong in June 2001.
Mr. Li was admitted a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong in September 2003.
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From June 2014 to November 2014, Mr. Li was an
independent non-executive director of China Financial
Leasing Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2312).

Currently, Mr. Li is the senior partner of Li & Lai, a firm of

solicitors in Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick, aged 61, was appointed
as the independent non-executive Director in December
2015.

Mr. Wong received a master’s degree in electronic commerce
from Edith Cowan University in Western Australia in
February 2002. Mr. Wong has been a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since June
1991 and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales since December 1993.

Mr. Wong has over 30 years of experience in accounting,
finance, audit, tax and corporate finance with an
international certified public accountant firm and listed
companies in the United Kingdom, New Zealand, Hong
Kong and Thailand. From April 1996 to March 1999,
Mr. Wong was an executive director of Hwa Kay Thai
Holdings Limited (currently known as China Solar Energy
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 155). From January 2001 to January 2011,
Mr. Wong was the chief financial officer and company
secretary of CIGYangtze Ports PLC, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8233), and has been an
independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of such company since April 2014 and the
chairman of the nomination committee of such company
since October 2015. Mr. Wong had been the chief financial
officer of APAC Resources Limited (stock code: 1104), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, since January 2011
and also acted as the company secretary of the company
between April 2011 and December 2011 and since February
2013 until he resigned from such positions in July 2016 and
served as a consultant to the company between August 2016
to October 2016.
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Senior Management Personnel

Other than the Directors, the senior management team
together with the executive Directors, are responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group. The following

RBREBEANR

table sets forth certain information in respect of our senior

management personnel:

Date of

appointment as

B A1 0 O B BT 0 A0 A 4
CEET  CRRET P0E T DNEYE
T EH

Date of joining HK senior management
Name Age  Perfect/the Group Present Position personnel Key role and responsibility
mERERE/ BREA R
%2 PR OKEHMAH i B i CEYNCLENER FREMERBRA
Mr. Chan Wai Hung 33 4 May 2006 (as a sales Business development 4 January 2010 Responsible for business
PR b e A executive of HK Perfect) director 201041 1 4H development and operations in
200645 4R (fE 5 (R % ERBRAE Dubai and its vicinity
WE R #E ) R LR E S L
i 6 0 55
Ms. Kong Pui Fun Pansy 49 8 October 2007 (as a human Human resources and 1 July 2011 Responsible for human resources
R PIS S resources and administrative administrative director ~ 20114F7 A 1H and administrative matters
manager of HK Perfect) NIERRATH A ANERRTHEE
20074 10A8H (fF By 8k
WHI BB K
fTBAEH)
Mrt. Tam Chun Wa 53 7 February 2017 Chief financial officer and 7 February 2017 Responsible for financial reporting
AR 20174£2H7H company secreary 201742H7H and compliance

L s L

B FR 5 MR
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Mr. Chan Wai Hung, aged 33, was appointed as the
business development director of the Group in January
2010. Mr. W.H. Chan joined HK Perfect as a sales
executive in May 2006. Mr. W.H. Chan is mainly
responsible for business development and operations
in Dubai and its vicinity, in particular, overseeing the
operations of HKP LLC (prior to its dissolution) and
Perfect (UAE), devising sales plans for the Dubai market
for approval by the Directors, maintaining and enhancing
business relationships with the customers from Dubai and
its vicinity, and exploring new business opportunity in
Dubai and its vicinity for the purpose of strengthening
the market share in such regions. Mr. W.H. Chan is the
son of Mr. W.S. Chan, the sole shareholder of Classic
Sapphire which hold 7.5% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Ms. Kong Pui Fun Pansy, aged 49, was appointed as the
human resources and administrative director of the Group
in July 2011. Ms. Kong joined HK Perfect as a human
resources and administrative manager in October 2007.
Ms. Kong is mainly responsible for human resources and

administrative matters.

Ms. Kong was awarded a diploma in business administration
by the Hong Kong Shue Yan University (formerly known as
Hong Kong Shue Yan College) in July 1991, and received a
bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Open

University of Hong Kong in December 2002.

Ms. Kong has more than 20 years of experience in human

resources and administrative work.
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Mr. Tam Chun Wa, aged 53, has been appointed as the
chief financial officer, the company secretary and the
authorised representative of the Company, all with effect
from 7 February 2017. Mr. Tam is mainly responsible for
financial reporting and compliance. Mr. Tam Chun Wa,
holds a master degree of business administration from
University of Sydney and is also a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA (Australia)
and Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants. Mr.
Tam has more than 20 years of experience in the areas of
auditing, accounting, tax, investment banking and company
secretarial works. Mr. Tam is an independent non-executive
Director of Green Energy Group Limited, being a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 979.

LY TS e NSV T
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Report of the Directors

H R,

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 to all
Shareholders.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 and the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated

financial statements on pages 70.

Final dividend

The Group has on 29 July 2016 declared an interim
dividend of HK$0.03 per share. The Directors recommend
the payment for final dividend of HK$0.03 per share for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Closure of Register of Members

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Monday, 12 June 2017.

To ascertain shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at
the annual general meeting to be held on Monday, 12 June
2017, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 7 June 2017 to Monday, 12 June
2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to
qualify to attend and vote at the annual general meeting,
all ctransfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited at
Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square,
338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong not later than
4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 6 June 2017.
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In order to establish the identity of the shareholders who are
entitled to the proposed final dividend, all duly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-
04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s
Road, North Point, Hong Kong, no later than 4:00 p.m.
on Tuesday, 27 June 2017. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 28 June 2017
to Friday, 30 June 2017, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. Subject to the
approval by the shareholders of the proposed final dividend
at the annual general meeting to be held on Monday,
12 June 2017, the final dividend will be paid on or around
Wednesday, 19 July 2017 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 30 June 2017.

Business review

Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance requires companies
to include a business review in the directors’ report.
Specifically, the Companies Ordinance requires a business
review to cover a number of areas which are also approved
by the board of directors and included in this report as

follows:

1. A fair review of the Group’s business
Page 7 to Page 11 of this report

2.  Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
Pages 12 and 13 of this report

3. Important events after the reporting date affecting the
Group Page 14 of this report

4. Indication of likely development of the Group
Pages 5 and 6 of this report
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Segment Information

The executive Directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, regularly review revenue analysis
by products, including rings, earrings, pendants, bangles,
necklaces and bracelets, and by location of delivery to
customers. The executive Directors considered the operating
activities of manufacturing and sales of jewellery products
as a single operating segment. The operating segment has
been identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies conform
to HKFRSs, and is regularly reviewed by the executive
Directors. The executive Directors review the overall
results, assets and liabilities of the Group as a whole to
make decisions about resources allocation. Accordingly, no

analysis of this single operating segment is presented.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
148 of this report. This summary does not form part of the

consolidated financial statements.

Share capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 73 to page 75
and in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had a reserve
of approximately HK$399,163,000 (2015: deficit of
approximately HK$16,728,000) in its distributable reserves,
calculated under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
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Major customers and suppliers

Sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 6.7%
and 25.0% of the Group’s total revenue for the year,
respectively. The purchases made by the Group from its
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 70.6% and 96.5% of the Group’s total

purchases for the year, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the
Directors, their close associates, nor any shareholders who
owned more than five percent of the Company’s issued share
capital, had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers during the year.

Subsidiaries

The details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Directors and directors’ services contracts

The Directors who hold office during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (Chairman)
Ms. Shek Mei Chun
Mr. Chung Chi Keung

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus
(resigned on 1 March 2017)
Mr. He Dingding (appointed on 1 March 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mzr. Fan Chor Ho
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a
services contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 4 January 2016, which may
be terminated by, not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other and is subject to
termination provisions therein and provisions on retirement
by rotation of the Directors as set forth in the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”).

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment
or a service agreement with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from 4 January 2016 or the date
of appointment, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting set forth in the Articles
of Association and until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other.

No Director has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the listing of securities on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”) and all of them are considered to be
independent.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third
of the existing Directors shall retire from office, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Kan Kin Kwong,
Ms. Shek Mei Chun and Mr. He Dingding will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Permitted indemnity provisions

At no time during the year ended December 31 2016 and
up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any
of the Directors and Supervisors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or an associated company (if made

by the Company).
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Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ liabilities have
been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure from the business of the

Group.

Directors’ interest in contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed — “Continuing
connected transactions” of this report, no contract of
significance to which the Company or its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest subsisted at the year ended 31
December 2016 or at any time during the year.

Continuing connected transactions

On 5 August 2015, Perfect Group HK entered into a
tenancy agreement (the “Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement”)
with HK Perfect, pursuant to which Perfect Group HK
agreed to lease premises from HK Perfect for a term of
three years commencing on 5 August 2015 for the purpose
of the Group’s offices in Hong Kong. The transactions
contemplated under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
are subject to reporting and announcement requirements
but exempt from circular and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Aggregate amount for
the financial year ended
31 December 2016
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Annual Cap amount

the financial year ended

31 December 2016
#E20164£12H31H 1k
Y BUAE JE 2 AR BB

Lease of premises from Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery
Company Limited (Note)
1] PR 3% Bk B A PR 2w AE T B B (5T

Note: Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery Company Limited is a
company incorporated in Hong Kong. It is an associate
of Mr. Kan Kin Kwong, a controlling sharecholder,
an executive Director, and a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

HK$3,480,000
3,480,000% 7T

HK$3,480,000
3,480,000 7T
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
had reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(2)  either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms or not, on
terms no less favorable than those available to or from
independent third parties; and

(3)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in interests of the Group as a whole.

According to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Biographies of directors and senior
management

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 17 to 23 of this report.

Controlling shareholders’ interest in contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed — “Continuing
connected transactions” of this report, there was no contract
of significance to which the Company or its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any of the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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Non-competition undertaking by controlling

shareholders

Each of the controlling sharcholders has made an annual
declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of
non-competition undertaking.

Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out
in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Company dated 22 December 2015
(the “Prospectus”).

Non-competition undertaking by executive
directors

The non-competition undertakings in respect of the executive
Directors have become effective from the Listing Date.

Each of the executive Directors has made an annual
declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of
non-competition undertaking from the Listing Date to the
date of this report.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the executive Directors have complied with
the non-competition undertaking and the non-competition
undertaking for the period set forth in the paragraph above
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its
terms.

Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out
in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Share option scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Disclosure of interests

Interests of Directors and chief executive
officers

As of the date of this report, the Directors and the chief
executive officer of the Company had the following
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company, its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO”))
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

Name of Director/

HE 25 9% 8%
B R EERTBON B &

AR B> AN F S R ERITHABRA
23]~ HOA G 98 LR R MO B R B (178
I B BRG] ) ) 2 BB ~ AR B 4y e B 55 o B
AR BIFC BRI AS 2> R ARG A8 I3 S ) e 1955 35 2.0
P A BB T > SR IR A R AT R
B2 Ty WA R < B 2 R AR ) B g 58 T i

A ) A FBETAT(EL0.0 17 7T 1Y 5 78 B 1

Approximately
percentage of

shareholdings in

chief executive officers Capacity/nature of interest Number of shares the Company
A A< 23 =] i HE WYy

wH S EELSBANRES 5y HE % PR E & ¥ H [ ONER oA
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (“Mr. Kan”) Interest of a controlled 262,113,000 shares

(note 1) corporation (long position)
it ot Se A (Mo A 1) (ME3ED) 5 1 1 B E i 262,113,0008 (47 5) 58.25%
Mr. Chung Chi Keung Interest of a controlled 10,125,000 shares

(“Mr. Chung”) (note 2) corporation (long position)
$l A5 S (TeR 2k ) (B &E2) 5 P 1 1 M A 10,125,000/ (4F &) 2.25%

Notes: Ff s -

1. Among these 262,113,000 shares, 243,000,000 shares are
registered in the name of Immaculate Diamonds Limited,
and the remaining 19,113,000 shares are registered in the
name of King Jewel Limited, the entire issued capital of both
Immaculate Diamonds Limited and King Jewel Limited are
owned by Mr. Kan. Under the SFO, Mr. Kan is deemed
to be interested in all the shares registered in the name of
Immaculate Diamonds Limited and King Jewel Limited.

2. These shares are registered in the name of Classic Emerald
Holdings Limited, the entire issued capital of which is owned
by Mr. Chung. Under the SFO, Mr. Chung is deemed to be
interested in all the shares registered in the name of Classic
Emerald Holdings Limited.

% %262,113,000/% B {43 % > 243,000,000/ P
Immaculate Diamonds Limitedf) % 38 550 > 88 F
19,113,000/ LAKing Jewel Limited 44 58% 50 »

Immaculate Diamonds Limited & King Jewel Limited
F A B B AT e A ol il SE AR A o R IR RE 5 K
W B e > £ 5 A5 0 £ iR Immaculate Diamonds
Limited X King Jewel Limited44 2& % 7e i BT A B 6>
A R o

7% % /53 LA Classic Emerald Holdings Limited ) %%
FEETL > AN A B A O AT A B 6 S AR B
H oo MRS LM BRG] - 8554 B A TR Classic
Emerald Holdings Limited 4% 285wt (1 T & B 47 H
A 4R o



Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept

under section 336 of the SFO.

Substantial shareholders

As to the date of this report, the following persons or
corporations, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company disclosed above, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register of the substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
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Section 336 of the SFO:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

AR ) A B TAT(EL0.0 17 7T Y 25 78 I £

Approximately
percentage of
shareholdings in

Capacity/nature the Company
Name of shareholder of interest Number of shares Al A< 2> ] 3 HE i
e bkt By HE 73 P E Ji& 4y 81 B RN
Immaculate Diamonds Limited (note 1) Beneficial owner 243,000,000 shares 54.00%
Immaculate Diamonds Limited (Fff5¥1) Hala A (long position)
243,000,000/% (4 7)
Chan Wing Sum Interest of a controller 33,750,000 shares 7.50%
B K 2R B R corporation (long position)
52 4 T V5 T HE AR 33,750,000/1 (47 58)
Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited (note 2) Beneficial owner 33,750,000 shares 7.50%
Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited (fff 5¥2) Ha A A (long position)
33,750,000/ (47 58)
Luo Jacky Interest of a controller 33,750,000 shares 7.50%
AR RS A corporation (long position)
52 T T V5 1 HE 4R 33,750,000/1 (4 5)
Classic Amber Holdings Limited (note 3) Beneficial owner 33,750,000 shares 7.50%

Classic Amber Holdings Limited (B 5E3)

HasEA A

(long position)

33,750,000/ (4 2)
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Notes:

1. The entire issued capital of this company is owned by Mr.
Kan.

2. This entire issued capital of this company is owned by Mr.

Chan Wing Sum.

3. This entire issued capital of this company is owned by Mr.
Luo Jacky.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
by any persons or corporations, other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as of the
date of this report.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s employees are selected, remunerated and
promoted based on their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The Company adopted the model set out in Code Provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
remuneration model for determining the emoluments of
the Directors. This model stipulates that the remuneration
committee of the Company shall make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The
remuneration committee of the Company would take
into consideration, among other things, the duties and
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management
and prevailing market conditions when determining their

remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme to provide
incentives to eligible persons, including Directors and
employees of the Group.
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Related Party Transactions

Particulars of the Company’s Related Party Transactions are

set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and the Company has complied with
the relevant requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in relation to these transactions. Other than the
transaction disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, each of these related party
transactions constitutes a fully exempt connected transaction
as defined under the Listing Rules.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
or the Laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listing
securities

Neither the Company nor any subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the

Company has maintained sufficient public float.

Corporate governance report

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report set out on pages

37 to 53 in this report.
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Report of the Directors

%$@W*

Auditor ¥ B b

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended e « B W B 7 & st AT % A R 20164F 121
31 December 2016 have been audited by Deloitte Touche BUH LR &R & MBS R - 168 « BB &
Tohmatsu, who will retire and, being eligible, offer FIRTAT A 5 AR o 64T A B AR A F Y R JiE B R
themselves for re-appointment at the forth coming annual AR KRG LR -

general meeting of the Company.

Review of Results by Audit Committee HEREBEHFMAES

The Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December AEHBE2016F12H31HIEFEZ R EED
2016 have been reviewed by the audit committee of the M ANFIFEZERZ B GHEHMN -
Company.

On behalf of the Board REEFG
Kan Kin Kwong FE
Chairman 2 18

Hong Kong, 20 March 2017 s > 20174E3 H20H



The Company strives to attain and maintain a high
standard of corporate governance as it believes that
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to
enhancing shareholders’ value and safeguarding interests of
shareholders and other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Board
attributes a high priority to identifying and implementing
appropriate corporate governance practices to ensure

transparency, accountability and effective internal controls.

Code on corporate governance practices

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. Up the date of this report, the Company
has complied with the code provision under the CG Code,
except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code as explained below. The Company will continue
to enhance its corporate governance practices appropriate to

the operation and growth of the business of the Group.

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
role of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The role of the chief executive
officer is performed by Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (“Mr. Kan”),
who is also the chairman of the Company. Mr. Kan as
the founder of the Group has extensive experience and
knowledge in the business of the Group. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of both chairman of the Company and
chief executive officer of the Company in the same person,
namely Mr. Kan, has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and

efficient overall strategic planning for the Group.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct for Directors in their dealings in the

securities of the Company.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
is satisfied that the Directors have complied with the Model
Code.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for formulating business strategies
and monitoring the performance of the business of the
Group. Other than the daily operational decisions which
are delegated to the management of the Group, most of the
decisions are taken by the Board. All Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective

functioning.

The Board constituted by seven members, including three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three

independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Chung Chi Keung
Ms. Shek Mei Chun

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus (resigned on 1 March 2017)
Mr. He Dingding (appointed on 1 March 2017)
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Fan Chor Ho
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick

Biographical details of each Director and relationship
between board members are set out on page 17 to page 23 of

this report.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms
of the guidelines. One of the independent non-executive
Directors possesses the appropriate professional accounting

qualifications and financial management expertise.
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Attended/Eligible to Attend

/R £ R
Remuneration Audit Nomination Risk
General Board  committee  committee  committee management
meetings meetings meetings meetins meetings meeting

iM% #hz  #4Z% Y
BRke EHEGHR REER HEGK HREGHR HHER

Executive Directors WiTEH

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong it Ak 11 616 0/0 0/0 11 11
Mr. Chung Chi Keung HER A 11 616 11 0/0 0/0 0/0
Ms. Shek Mei Chun REL L L 11 616 0/0 0/0 0/0 11
Non-executive Directors FOUTES

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus ®? IR e A ) 11 616 0/0 )y 0/0 0/0
Mt. He Dingding 2 BT T kA 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0

Independent non-executive Directors BukEuamES

M. Fan Chor Ho e s 11 616 0/0 0/0 11 0/0
M. Li Cheuk Wai ZRPEE 11 6l6 11 22 11 11
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick ERE A 11 616 1/1 22 0/0 0/0

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and T 5 1 A HE AT B o o | SO AR B E R - Sl
related materials, and the advice and services of the company Al REA N B 2N AL ([N |l fa |) R4t R %
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), and MRE > RAESTHER FERBrEEEH
has the liberty to seek independent professional advice at the i) fh AN TRYE o 15 I e A B T

y i ired. Di ill , e
Compmy g o enombly st DIt vl g w2 AR A
\ 51328 2 K 4 3 B AN B 85 02 Al o
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements S FRSE By RAS A9 £ R AR

to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practices.

Notes: Fif 2 -

Note 1: resigned on 1 March 2017 Bff5E1 : A20174F3 H 1 H BEAE
Note 2: appointed on 1 March 2017 Bt 52 : #A20174F3 H 1 H R AT



Board Committees

The Board has established four committees, namely
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the risk management committee (the
“Risk Management Committee”). The table below provides
the membership information of these committees on which

certain Board members served:
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EHEITHAMNMZEG P ARSEZAES
(IFEEZEE)  RAZEG((RAZAE®])
FMZRE (THFMEZR®) MamERER®
(MEpEMZEEE]) - PREME THEREGNA
TE 3% % %2 B8 P T AT i Ao -

Risk

Audit Nomination Remuneration Management

Directors Committee Committee Committee Committee
HH HHERE REZEH VMEzEE AEEHZEY
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong [CREES i e - C - ©
Mr. Chung Chi Keung e - - M -
Ms. Shek Mei Chun [iES 3= - - - M
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus o<V R fg 7% Jfg AR (WD M - - -
Mr. He Dingding (2 BT T A wi M - - -
Mr. Fan Chor Ho ki ek - M - -
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai B M M C M
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick 5 4 i /5 £ © - M -

Notes:

C — Chairman of the relevant Committee
M — Member of the relevant Committee
(note 1) resigned on 1 March 2017
(note 2) appointed on 1 March 2017

C-fHHZEEGIE
M-HHZEEEHE
(BigEL)  iA20174F3 H 1 H BEAF
(Bif5E2) Rh20174F3H 1 H & AE
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22 of the
Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee have been modelled off the Code Provisions.
Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises one non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus (resigned on
1 March 2017), Mr. He Dingding (appointed on 1 March
2017) and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Li Cheuk Wai and Mr. Wong Wai Keung
Frederick. Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include:

= Consider the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, the audit fee and terms
of engagements, and any questions of resignation or

dismissal of that auditor;

—  Review the financial statements and provide material
advice in respect of financial reporting of the Group;

and

= Oversight of internal control procedures and risk

management of the Group.

Meetings of the Audit Committee shall be held no less than
two times a year. Two meetings of the Audit Committee

were held during the review year.
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A w CMOLEZ B g > IR B RHIE3.21
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Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference with effect from 14 December 2015
and comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Kan
Kin Kwong and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Fan Chor Ho and Mr. Li Cheuk Wai. Mr. Kan

Kin Kwong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The duties of the Nomination Committee shall be:

— Review the structure, size and composition (including
the gender, age, cultural background, education
background, skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the

Company’s corporate strategy;

—  Identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for

directorships;

—  Assess the independency of independent non-executive

Directors;

= Make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive; and

—  Review the board diversity policy as appropriate
and to review the measurable objectives under
the board diversity policy and the progress of the
attainment of the objectives, so as to ensure effective
implementation; and make disclosure of its review

results in the corporate governance report.

Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held no
less than once a year. One meeting of the Nomination

Committee was held during the review year.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) which embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Pursuant to the Diversity Policy, the Company would try
to seek board candidates with Company’s business model
and specific needs, including (but not limited to) gender,
regional and industry experience, skills, knowledge and

educational background.

The Board will review such objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made

towards achieving those objectives.
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Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 14
December 2015 and comprises one executive Director,
namely Mr. Chung Chi Keung and two independent non-
executive Directors,, namely Mr. Li Cheuk Wai and Mr.
Wong Wai Keung Frederick. Mr. Li Cheuk Wai is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee shall be:

- Make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy;

—  Review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

— Make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management;

= Make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

—  Consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

—  Review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

— Review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

—  Ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.
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Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held not
less than once a year. One meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held during the review year.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of CG Code, the
remuneration of members of senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

Remuneration Band

3t T A 12

I I P P AT B )

BE B A EHEIT AL R e - HME
B 0] A R AT T o
P2 A A HIB.1.516 » B £ 20164E12 31

HOLk 4 BE > o S B B 4% 38 I o [ ) ) 2

P 51 0

No. of Individuals

A

Nil - HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001
HK$1,500,001
HK$2,000,001
HK$2,500,001
HK$3,000,001
HK$3,500,001

to HK$1,500,000
to HK$2,000,000
to HK$2,500,000
to HK$3,000,000
to HK$3,500,000
to HK$4,000,000

0%1,000,000%5 7C

1,000,001 %5 7C 421,500,000 7T
1,500,001 5 7€ 222,000,000 7T
2,000,001%5 7T 52,500,000 4% 7T
2,500,001 JT 423,000,000 70
3,000,001%5 7€ 53,500,000 74
3,500,001 JC 424,000,000 % 7T

Risk management committee

The Risk Management Committee was established on 14
December 2015 and comprises two executive Directors,
namely Mr. Kan Kin Kwong and Ms. Shek Mei Chun and
one independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li
Cheuk Wai. Mr. Kan Kin Kwong is the chairman of the

Risk Management Committee.

The duties of the Risk Management Committee shall be
monitoring the Company’s exposure to sanctions law risks
and its implementation of the related internal control

procedures, and shall include:

—  Reviewing and approving all relevant business
transaction documentation from suppliers or customers
or potential customers from any country that is subject

to sanctions (the “Relevant Counterparty”);

—  Reviewing the information (such as identity and nature
of business) relating to the Relevant Counterparty to
the contract along with the draft business transaction

documentation;
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—  Checking the Relevant Counterparty against the
various lists of restricted parties and countries
maintained by the United States of America, the
European Union, the United Nations and Australia,
including, without limitation, any government,
individual or entity that is the subject of any United
States Department of Treasury’s Office of Foreign
Assets Control-administered sanctions which lists
are publicly available, and determining whether the
Relevant Counterparty is, or is owned or controlled
by, a person located in any country that is subject to

sanctions or a sanctioned person;

—  Reviewing on a semi-annual basis internal control
policies and procedures with respect to sanctions law

matters; and

— If any potential sanctions risk is identified, or
if the Committee considers necessary, retaining
external international legal counsel with necessary
expertise and experience in sanctions law matters for

recommendations and advice.

Meetings of the Risk Management Committee shall be
held no less than once a year. One meeting of the Risk

Management Committee was held during the review year.
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Continuous professional development

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the year, the Group has
provided training materials for all the Directors to keep
them abreast of the latest development of legal, regulatory
and corporate governance. The Group, together with its
compliance adviser, continuously updates the Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate

governance practices.

Company secretary

Mr. Tam Chun Wa, aged 53, has been appointed as the
chief financial officer, the company secretary and the
authorised representative of the Company, all with effect
from 7 February 2017. Mr. Tam Chun Wa, holds a master
degree of business administration from University of Sydney
and is also a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, CPA (Australia) and Institute of
Singapore Chartered Accountants. He has fulfilled the 15
hours of relevant professional training requirement under
the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The Directors aim
to present a clear and understandable assessment of the
Group’s financial position and prospects. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board
therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach
in preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
Company’s annual and interim reports, inside information
announcements and other financial disclosures required by
the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect
to the financial reporting are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report of this report.

Disclosure of Long Term Basis for Generating
or Preserving Business Value

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s corporate strategy
and long term business model is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis of
this report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a stable
and effective risk management and internal control systems
for the Group and also responsible for reviewing their
effectiveness. The Board, with the assistance from the Audit
Committee, conducted annual review on the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
as required by the Code Provisions, covering financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, and including reviews on the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial report function for the Period and
considered they were effective and adequate.
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Conflicts of Interest Declaration

The Group adopted conflict of interest declaration policy
as one of the important internal control procedures.
Employees are required to provide annual declaration of
conflict of interest, and strictly comply with the policy to
ensure that the Group and its customers, business partners,
shareholders, employees and business community of the
transactions and dealings are in line with the highest

standards of business conduct and ethics.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group established a whistleblowing policy for
employees under confidentiality to file complaint and
report any suspected misconduct, fraud and irregularities,
in an orderly manner. A designated director is assigned for
receiving, reviewing complaint and report, to investigate, to
draw conclusion and to make appropriate recommendations
for improvement, and inform the relevant departments

senior management to implement corrective action.

The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Board engaged GDT CPA Limited, an independent firm
of certified public accountants, to conduct an independent
review of the systems of internal control of the Group.
Weakness and inadequacies identified during such review
together with recommendations for improvement thereon,
had been accepted and implemented in full by the Company
and reviewed by the Audit Committee. Based on this, the
Company is of the view that the internal control system in
place for the year ended 31 December 2016 is sufficient to
safeguard the interests of the sharcholders and the Group’s

assets.
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Auditor’s remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had
engaged external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, to

provide the following services:
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Service Fee

ke 5 #¢

HK$’000

TH# T

Audit services % B IR 1,615,000
Tax advisory o 5 TR 1 85,000
Interim review services rh 3 2 B IR 350,000

Investor relations and communication with

shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good
communication with the shareholders. The Company
believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is the

key to enhance investor relations.

The Company has established several communication
channels, including (a) the annual and extraordinary
general meetings which provide a forum for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board; (b) printed corporate
documents mailing to Sharcholders; (c) announcement
disseminating the latest activities of the Group on the
web-sites of the Company and the Stock Exchange; (d)
the Company’s web-site providing an electronic means of

communication.
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Annual General Meeting

The Board and senior management are well aware of their
important tasks of acting on behalf of the interests of all
the Shareholders and raising the Shareholders’ returns. The
Board considers that AGM is an important opportunity for
direct communication with the Shareholders. Code A.6.7 of
the Code Provisions require that independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of the Shareholders. The Board encourages all the
Shareholders to participate in the AGM where the members
of the Board and external auditors will be present and

communicate with the Shareholders.

Shareholders’ Rights

How Shareholder Can Convene an Extraordinary

General Meeting

In accordance with Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call an extraordinary
general meeting. Any one or more Sharcholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up share capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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Procedures by which Enquiries may be Put to the
Board

Sharcholders may, at any time, direct enquiries to the Board.
Such enquiries can be addressed to the Company Secretary
in writing by mail to the Company’s registered office in the
Cayman Islands at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands or its
principal place of business in Hong Kong and headquarters
at 26th Floor, YHC Tower, No. 1 Sheung Yuet Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at

Shareholders’” Meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders
to put forward new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a new resolution
may request the Company to convene a general meeting
in accordance with the procedures set out in the above
paragraph heading “How Shareholder Can Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for
election as a Director at a general meeting, the relevant
documents must be validly served on the Company’s
registered office in the Cayman Islands or the place of
business in Hong Kong and headquarters within the
requisite period of time. The full details of the procedures
for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director were posted on 31 December 2015 on the web-site

of the Company at http://www.hkperjew.com.hk.
Significant Changes in Constitutional
Documents

As of the date of this report, there were no changes made to

the constitutional documents of the Company.
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Scope of Report

This report is the first Environmental, Social and
Governance (the “ESG”) Report published by Perfect
Group International Holdings Limited, which is prepared in
accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and the actual situation of the Company. This report
aims to improve the stakeholders’ understanding of the
Company’s environmental and social performance as well as

the sustainable development strategy of the Company.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance for
the Group’s operation in Hong Kong and Dubai and factory
operation in PRC.

Reporting Period

The report covered from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2016.

The Group’s Commitment on
Environmental and Social Responsibility

As an enterprise with social and public responsibilities,
the Group is committed to the sustainable development of
the environment and society. The Group strictly follows
the laws, regulations and standards related to the safety,
environment and occupational hygiene and health as
imposed by the PRC and the jurisdiction where the Group’s

business operations are located.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
STAKEHOLDERS AND FEEDBACK

The Group stresses great importance on internal and
external communication and keeps abreast of the internal
and external information trends on a timely basis to
enable the Company’s policies and management models
to match with its internal demand, industry and regional
industry development. In respect of the Company’s
sustainable development governance, we communicate
with stakeholders to review our own environmental and
social performance and identify those topics that need to
be highlighted or improved. We will continually improve
and perfect the content and form of the ESG Report in the
future. You are welcome to contact the Company at any
time if you have any doubt or advice on this report. The

contact information is as follows:

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited
26/F., YHC Tower,

1 Sheung Yuet Road,

Kowloon Bay,

Hong Kong

Environmental Protection

The Group is committed to promoting an environmentally
conscious work place and aims and places significant
emphasis on minimizing our environmental impact and to

create a more sustainable future for future generations.

Emissions

The Company attaches great importance in controlling
resources utilization, conserves resources from source as far
as possible and achieves resources reuse at the same time,

including energy, water and other raw materials.

Our production operations are exclusively carried out at
the Perfect Factory, a processing factory in Dongguan
under the Processing Agreement, is subject to certain PRC
environmental laws and regulations. The primary waste

generated from our production processes is waste water.
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Our factory has obtained the relevant Drainage Permit

issued by local government.

The Group has adopted various policies and put in place
effective internal guidance and arrangements in order
for compliance of the relevant PRC environmental laws,

including:

—  Wastewater segregation collection system is established
in the production sites to adopt segregated treatment
measures for various wastewaters. Waste water
treatment sites are set up inside the plants to ensure the

standard drainage of waste water after being treatment.

—  Production plant has been equipped with proper
drainage facilities and appointed environmental
technology company to collect the drainage; enter into
a waste water treatment agreement with a qualified
water treatment company which is responsible for
collecting the wastewater produced in Perfect Factory’s

production process.
—  Inspect the drainage facilities regularly.

We incurred approximately HK$20,000 for the year (2015:
HK$7,000) as cost of compliance with the applicable PRC
environmental rules and regulations. The Perfect Factory has
been compliant with all relevant PRC environmental related
laws and regulations in all material respects during this
period. We expect our cost of compliance with applicable
environmental rules and regulations for the 2017 year to
remain at a relatively comparable level as that for the past

few years.

During the year 2016, there was no incidence of non-
compliance with the environmental laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the Group.
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Use of Resources

The Group relies on energy for production process and
business operation. Purchased electricity is a major source of

energy consumption.

The Group has adopted various policies in order to reduce

energy consumption:

—  Our head office in Hong Kong and the production
plant in PRC have installed LED lighting systems;

—  Security guards are arranged to check our offices
and switch off electric appliances such as lights, air-
conditioners, printers and water dispensers during non-

office hours;

—  Meanwhile, the Group maintains monthly records
of electricity consumption and also regularly reviews
the relevant usage to enhance energy efficiency

management.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is fully aware of the environmental impact
of the product environmental performance of the
Company on the entire industry. The Group strives to
incorporate environmental factors in the product design
and development stage for preventive purpose, conducts
an environmental impact assessment on product life
cycle, understand in full the nature and extent of product
impact at every stage on environmental intervention, so as
to identify the opportunities for preventing pollution on
products, puts more efforts in reducing the negative impact

of product on environment on product design.

In order to save natural resources, our head office and
production plant posts the lists of environmentally friendly
working guide and reminders to encourage colleagues to
save resources. In additions, the Group maintains records of
water and paper consumption and also reviews the relevant

usage regularly to formulate resources saving policies.
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Social Responsibility

Employment and Labour Practices and Labour

Standards

The Group regularly reviews the direction of human
resources on operation to ensure that which could comply
with the local regulations. The Group formulates appraisal
system to assess the performance of staff on an annual
interval. The Group strictly complies with the laws and
regulations of employment and labour practices in local
governments to provide staff with remuneration and
benefits, including paid annual leave, medical insurance and
retirement benefit planning, and discretionary bonus scheme
is also in place to reward the employees with outstanding

performance.

The Group has stringent recruitment to prevent child or

forced labour.

People Development and Training

We believe that our employees are the most valuable
resources and their loyalty is a key element to the Group’s
success. We aim to foster a friendly and safe environment of
respect, trust and communication with emphasis placed on

staff satisfaction and team work.

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of business ethics of staff. Training programmes on anti-
corruption and anti-money laundering is provided for senior
management and sales department staff annually to refresh

their understanding.

The Group encourages our employees in the relevant
departments to participate in open competitions, including
jewellery design competitions held in the industry to

broaden their horizon and raise their professionalism.
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We encourage, support and fund opportunities for
further job and personal development through attendance
of external training courses and seminars; and further
education as well as on-the-job training. In particular,
certain key production processes of our products, such as
stone matching, stone setting, filing and quality control
are highly technical and require high precision, hence
experiences and enhanced skills. Quality control and
inspection on raw materials such as diamonds and stone
matching, which involves selecting suitable diamonds in
terms of size, colour, clarity and cut for specific design
and product, can only be performed by experienced labour
who has built up considerable knowledge and experience,
as these processes are highly manual and skill-orientated.
To maintain the quality of our production, we provide
continuous hands-on training to our production staff in
various areas including stone matching, stone setting,

quality control and raw material inspection.

Furthermore, we believe that a sales team with more
comprehensive understanding of the jewellery industry can
improve sales performance. Hence, we require some of our
key sales team members to receive training at the Perfect
Factory to acquire knowledge on the production processes of

our products.

On the reward and retention front, we strive to retain
skilled labours and competent and experienced personnels,
and inject new talents to our Group. To retain morale
and loyalty, we have reviewed and increased the salary
of our skilled labour and senior management personnel
for the three consecutive years. In order to maintain our
competitiveness in the fine jewellery industry, we also
attract new talents and retain existing staff with proven

performance by rewarding them with discretionary bonus.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did
not involve any material labor disputes with employees
which had a material adverse effect on the Group’s

operation or financial condition.
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Health and Safety

The Group is committed to avoid industrial accidents for
our employees and those who work in our workplace. Our
factory production development staff is exposed to risks
when using tools. Comprehensive safety measures are in

place to improve the safety in our workplace:

—  Provide working safety training material and safety
production workflow rules to staff in the production
plant;

— DProduction staff are equipped with protective
equipment in workplace;

—  Post work safety guideline in work place in order to
enhance the staff acknowledgement and understanding
of the dangerous of the workplace and safety workflow:

— Implemented internal policies and rules to maintain
effective health and safety control, including safe
production work requirements, safe production fire
control and management rules, electricity safety
management rules, dangerous chemicals management
rules, work safety and health management rules,
emergency management rules, and accidents reporting
rules; and

— Annually inspects the electrical installations and fire

protection systems.

During the year 2016, there was no significant industrial

incidence causing death and injuries on the Group.

Supply Chain Management

Purchasing Department of the Group assesses the potential
clients. Only qualified suppliers which must pass the
Group’s assessment procedures can be transacted with
us. The Group regularly reviews the status of supply and
establishes the responding policies.
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Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to quality control and quality

assurance.

The Group puts emphasis on quality of products. All
products are inspected before sold to customers, only
qualified products which pass our tests can be sold to
customers. In the year 2016, we have passed third-party
inspections by Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’
Association. During the year 2016, there was no material

recall of products in relation to health and safety issues.

Anti-corruption

The Group has a comprehensive measure with reporting
mechanism to prevent corruption particularly on the
procurement aspect. Also, employees shall be terminated
if he/she accepted kickbacks, involved in bribery, or any

malpractice that would cause the Group significant loss.

We set stringent requirements to uphold our standards on
ethical and equitable business practices. All our employees
are required to comply with policies and regulations related
but not limited to code of conduct, business ethics, conflicts
of interests, anti-corruption, anti-discrimination and privacy
data handling. Our sales department applies strictly sales
approval procedures and guidelines to assess the background

of the new client, in order to govern the sale transactions.
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Community Investment

Over the years, the Group has focused on the community
activities and strongly encourage our staff to participate
in various volunteer works. During the year, the Group
adopted a policy to provide assistance to the staff when they
were participating community services. These assistances
include relocation of workload, giving priority on leave
application and providing financial support upon their

request from staff etc to encourage them to participate these

volunteer activities.
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Deloitte

To the Shareholders of

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Perfect Group International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“the Group”) set out on pages 70 to 147, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of trade receivables

We identified valuation of trade receivables  Our procedures in relation to valuation of trade
as a key audit matter as the recoverability of  receivables included:
trade receivables is estimated by management

with reference to the customers’ credit history, Obtaining an understanding of the
Group’s provision policy on trade
receivables and evaluating management’s

settlement patterns, subsequent settlements and
aging analysis of the trade receivables.

key controls for the preparation of
The Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December

2016 amounted to HK$72,395,000.

aging analysis of trade receivables

and determination of credit limits,

credit approvals and other monitoring

Please refer to note 17 to the consolidated procedures for recovering overdue debts;

financial statements for details.

. Testing the aging analysis of trade
receivables, on a sample basis, to
suppotting documents including sales
invoices;

. Testing the subsequent settlement of
trade receivables, on a sample basis, to
supporting documents including bank-in
slips and remittance advices; and

. Discussing with management and
assessing the reasonableness and
recoverability of overdue trade
receivables without//with insignificant
subsequent settlement during the year o
subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, as identified by management,
with reference to customers’ credit
history, settlement patterns, subsequent
settlements and aging analysis of trade
receivables.
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Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matter
Valuation of inventories

We identified valuation of inventories as a
key audit matter as the Group had significant
amount of finished goods which are fine
jewellery products as at the end of the reporting
period. These finished goods may be subject
to impairment due to fluctuation in selling
prices. In determining the allowance to be made
to finished goods, management considers the
current market conditions, estimated selling
prices, movements and subsequent transaction

prices of the finished goods.

The Group’s inventories as at 31 December 2016
amounted to HK$169,221,000.

Please refer to note 16 to the consolidated

financial statements for details.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to management's valuation

of inventories included:

Obtaining an understanding of the
Group’s provision policy on inventory
and evaluating management’s process for
determining the impairment of finished
goods;

Testing the subsequent sales of finished
goods, on a sample basis, to supporting
documents including invoices and

payments slips;

Obtaining independent valuation of
individual fine jewellery products
in significant amounts; evaluating
the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;
and the reasonableness of key
assumptions adopted in the valuation
model;

Discussing with management and
evaluating the impairment assessment
by management on finished goods
without/with insignificant subsequent
sales after the reporting period; and

Assessing the reasonableness of the
estimation of the net realisable value
of finished goods with reference
to the current market conditions,
estimated selling prices, movements and
subsequent transaction prices of finished
goods.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also :

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements — continued

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements — continued

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the

independent auditor’s report is Tsang Chi Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2017
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

#WE2016F12H31 H IE4FE
2016 2015
20164 20154F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
i F# T T
Revenue i i 6 322,423 458,306
Cost of goods sold B & & A (233,479) (326,229)
Gross profit E A 88,944 132,077
Other income HoAh e A 7 1,438 577
Other gains and losses HoAth i 7 2 s 15 8 (2,051) (2)
Selling and distribution costs 81 B K4y 8 AR (13,631) (14,184)
General and administrative and other expenses  — % J 47 B 2 HoAth B 3¢ (34,791) (51,014)
Finance costs W HS 2 9 (440) (1,458)
Profit before taxation Wk A AT s 1) 10 39,469 65,996
Taxation i JH 12 (4,770) (9,536)
Profit for the year 4 1A Vi ) 34,699 56,460
Other comprehensive income (expense) A Ry At 2 T U 5
for the year (B 32)
Item that will not be reclassified HAR S A o E B A S
subsequently to profit or loss: 2HEHENIEE :
Surplus on revaluation of land and buildings oMb R M A AR - 8,347
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HEvRREN M E
to profit or loss: HEWIEE :
Exchange differences arising on translation i B SN SE TS IRy
of foreign operations Az HY ME 5, 75 5H - 25
Exchange differences released upon disposal t 5 g Sh SEHS IR fif
of foreign operations % [ 58, 2 A - (61)
Other comprehensive income for the year AP PRy At 4 T i A - 8,311
Total comprehensive income for the year A TN A T WAL 4 AR AR 34,699 64,771
Earnings per share — Basic g e L ) — Fe A 14 7.7 HK centsi fill  16.7 HK cencsits fll
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At 31 December 2016
*20164F12H31H

2016 2015
20164 20154F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
M T# T T

Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y2 ~ Wk s ot 15 6,076 5,801
Rental deposits 414 752 752
Deferred tax assets A SiE 7 JE B 25 688 977
7,516 7,530

Current assets i B &
Inventories 8 16 169,221 179,129
Trade and other receivables B 5 B Ho A JRE e 7 B 17 75,731 126,720
Deposits ¥ 4 18 31,619 -
Bank balances and cash SRAT 45 M Bl & 19 202,567 41,209
479,138 347,058
Current liabilities i B & fE

Trade and other payables B 5y B HoAth JE AT 3K IH 20 31,069 49,878
Taxation payable JRE 5l TH 11,031 6,996
Bank loans HRAT B K 21 2,365 -
Other borrowing HoAh 5 £ 22 28,250 -
Amount due to a related company JRE A B 7 B 3KOH 23 - 282,103
72,715 338,977
Net current assets VB E T E 406,423 8,081
Total assets less current liabilities G E A RO E) B A 413,939 15,611

Non-current liability it By A T
Provision for long service payments = 00 IR 5 < 18 A 24 999 936

Net assets

BT E 412,940 14,675
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
HEOWMBHRIER

At 31 December 2016

R20164F£12H31 H

2016 2015
20164F 20154F
NOTE HK$°000 HK$’000
i F# T T

Share capital and reserves J% A e fith A
Share capital JEeA 26 4,500 -
Reserves it 408,440 14,675
Total equity HE 25 AR %A 412,940 14,675

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 147 EI0E R BI47TE 2 S MBI E K fan
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of 20174F3 20 H LU I RETI 3% > S i 5 & S 4t
Directors on 20 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: Xrm

Kan Kin Kwong Chung Chi Keung
i e % i s o
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

HH HF
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

WE2016F12H31 H IEFRE
Property
Share Share Special revaluation  Exchange  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
/EL ]
Bk RBEE  RRGG  MEE  EXRE  REEH it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK§000  HK§'000
T#x  TExr Téx TEx  TEx  TEx  TExn
(Note)
(i)
At 1 January 2015 201541110 = - 3406 30 36 295104 361,067
Profit for the year i i 7 - - - - - 56,460 56,460
Surplus on revaluation of land and buildings L RETHE G - - - 8,347 - - 8,347
Exchange difference arising on translation of SN R R

foreign operations B EH - - - - % = 55
Release upon disposal of foreign operations N ER B R T - - = = (61) = (61)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year ERATA () 4% - - - 8,347 (36) 56,460 04,771

Movement of the business other than the fine FEFREEHINER
jewellery business (“Non-Jewellery Business”) ([ERELE)) HhEH - - 31,115 - - - 31115
Release upon disposal of land and buildings BT TR B - = = (24,7%) - 24,735 -
Arising from the Business Transfer (note 2) ERHEEE (f:h) - - (348,409) (15,633) - 18,538 (345,500)
Issue of shares BT R 1 1 - - - - 2
Repurchase of shares B e (1) 1 - - - - -
Dividends (note 13) BE () - - - - - (97,0000 (97,000)
At 31 December 2015 20155 12431H - 2 (283,164) - - 97837 14,675
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year Ehif R AT SE = = = = = 34,699 34,699
Issue of shares Bkt 1,125 103,500 - - - - 104625
Loan capitalisation (note 23) BB (i) = - 2803 - - - 28,103
Capitalisation issue of shares BAL BT RG 3,375 = (3,375) = = = =
Share issue expenses et B B 5 - (9,602) - - - - (9,662)
Dividends (note 13) B8 () - - - - - (13S0 (1350
At 31 December 2016 JR20165 121318 4500 93,840 (4,436) - - 3190% 412,040
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

R LR S W3R
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

Note:

Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery Company Limited (“HK Perfect”)
and its subsidiaries, the Company’s fellow subsidiaries, carried
out the fine jewellery business (the “Jewellery Business”) prior
to the Business Transfer (defined in note 2). Prior to the Group
Reorganisation (defined in note 2), HK Perfect also had some
Non-Jewellery Business which did not form part of the Group,
and hence the financial position and operating results of the
Group does not include those directly attributable to the Non-
Jewellery Business. However, since historically and throughout the
period prior to the Business Transfer (defined in note 2), several
bank accounts were maintained by HK Perfect and certain of its
subsidiaries for both the Jewellery Business and Non-Jewellery
Business, which are inseparable, the Group’s movements of cash
flows as well as changes in equity have inevitably included those
related to the Non-Jewellery Business regardless the date of the
Business Transfer, when the Jewellery Business was formally
transferred to the Group and it became a group of distinct and
separate legal entities apart from HK Perfect. Therefore,

i. in the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2015, any fund flows resulted
in the increase and decrease of the bank accounts as a result
of transactions relating to the Non-Jewellery Business,
even though not related to the Group’s Jewellery Business,
were reflected as deemed financing cash flows of the Group
with the controlling shareholder, Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (the
“Controlling Shareholder”), and included in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows for the period up to the
date of Business Transfer.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ii.  in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015, due to the
fact that both the Jewellery Business and Non-Jewellery
Business were under the common control of the Controlling

Shareholder,

(a) any corresponding increase in resources of the Group
as a result of transactions mentioned in (i) above was
credited to special reserve and recognised as deemed
contributions from the Controlling Shareholder; and

(b) any corresponding decrease in resources as a result of
transactions mentioned in (i) above was debited to
special reserve and recognised as deemed distributions
to the Controlling Shareholder.

On 5 August 2015, all the rights and obligations, assets and
liabilities related specifically to the Jewellery Business carried
out by HK Perfect and its subsidiaries as at the date of the
Business Transfer were formally transferred by HK Perfect
to a subsidiary of the Company, Perfect Group International
Holdings (HK) Limited, for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$282,103,000, which was capitalised upon completion of
the Group Reorganisation on 4 January 2016. Those assets not
related to the Jewellery Business, including land and buildings and
motor vehicles amounting to HK$150,510,000 and bank loans
amounting to HK$84,208,000, were retained by HK Perfect and
included in the movement of the special reserve during the year
ended 31 December 2015 as deemed distribution.

5 B A 5 W)
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

2016 2015
20164F 20154F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T# T
Operating activities B E)
Profit before taxation I 3t 7 Y 39,469 65,996
Adjustments for: WA R IE H A i
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment W~ B Bk i3 8 2,378 4,429
Allowance for doubtful debts R AR 1,980 =
Interest income Bl A (367) (2)
Interest expenses FE B 32 440 1,458
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEW - s Bk i
plant and equipment (i #i) e 18 (41) 2
Operating cash flows before movements R T 4 A Y T A
in working capital B 43,859 71,883
Decrease in inventories F B 9,908 24,638
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables B B A IR Az K T ik 2
(4 m) 49,009 (18,697)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables and B 5y T LAt B A 3O DA T 43
provision 5 (D) 1869 (18,746) 10,260
Cash generated from operations KSR 4 84,030 88,084
Tax paid EATBiIE (446) (6,388)
Net cash generated from operating activities R8T ) BT 1T B AR 83,584 81,696
Investing activities OB E B
Deposit paid for acquisition of an equity investment W A R 1 A 4 (3,369) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B2 MmN (2,661) (1,039)
Interest received 2 LR 367 2
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and thEWE - K Bk
equipment 149 By 1% 3 A 49 74
Proceeds from disposal of assets classified as held for sale 85 73 %8 7 3¢ 1F 85 &
B 3 3R - 25,510
Net cash (used in) from investing activities BEWEHE (T A) s
Bl & (5,614) 24,547
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

#WE20165F12H31 H (L4
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THs T
Financing activities il 5 35 )
Proceeds from issue of shares J 453 85 47 r 45 3 IH 104,625 2
New bank loans raised SR AT AR 2,365 -
Dividends paid e S (13,500) (97,000)
Share issue expenses paid A IR A B AT B 32 (9,662) -
Interest paid g AR (440) (1,458)
Repayment of bank loans fE 7R SRAT B K - (25,061)
Cash outflows to the Non-Jewellery Business TR LT B & i - (10,000)
Cash inflows from the Non-Jewellery Business FEBRE ET B & A - 41,115
Net cash from (used in) financing activities e VS B AR (B )
B 83,388 (92,402)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4 N B 4 4 (A W 8 0 v A 161,358 13,841
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year TR B4 B B4 S E ) 41,209 27,343
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes A1 HEE e 23 528 ) 5 8% - 25
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year R BB KB B EEY 202,567 41,209
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

GENERAL

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 16 June 2015 and its shares were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 4 January 2016. The registered office of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and the principal place of business of the Company is
at 26/F, YHC Tower, 1 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon
Bay, Hong Kong. The Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Immaculate Diamonds
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) which is controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the
Company are designing, manufacturing and exporting
of fine jewellery. Particulars of the subsidiaries of the

Company are set out in note 33.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is different from
the functional currency of the Company, United States
dollars (“US$”). The reason for selecting HK$ as its
presentation currency is because the shareholders of

the Company are located in Hong Kong.

— B E R
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R ([HfEzg e ) B o A8 28 &) 19 5% it 3
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Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands © 45 24 7] (19 3 22 /8 36 3t 3B 2 & W L
HE ¥ I 4 1 5% BT B R p D26 - AR
A Y B 2 AP A R R — TR AE 3 8 R 4
RES ([ )& BE & BE & 1) 5 M 52 B9 2 )
Immaculate Diamonds Limited » 7%/ A H 4

i Fse AR 42 ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GROUP REORGANISATION AND
BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”), the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and HK Perfect
underwent a group reorganisation (the “Group
Reorganisation”) which mainly involved interspersing
shell entities and transferring the Jewellery Business
from HK Perfect, which was also under the common
control of the Controlling Sharecholder. On 26 June
2015, Perfect Group International Holdings (HK)
Limited (“Perfect Group HK”) entered into a business
transfer agreement with HK Perfect, pursuant to
which HK Perfect ceased the Jewellery Business and
transferred formally to the Group all the operation,
assets and liabilities related specifically to the Jewellery
Business (the “Business Transfer”). However, certain
assets and liabilities of HK Perfect that were not
related specifically to the Jewellery Business were not
be transferred to the Group and were retained by HK
Perfect after the Group Reorganisation. Major steps of
the Group Reorganisation included the following:
Stepl:  On 9 June 2015, Perfect Group
International Holdings Limited (“Perfect
(BVI)”) was incorporated with an issued
and fully paid share capital of US$10,000
and controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder.

Step2:  On 16 June 2015, the Company was
incorporated with an issued and fully paid
share capital of US$100 and controlled by
the Controlling Shareholder.

On 23 June 2015, Perfect (BVI)
incorporated Perfect Group HK in Hong

Step 3:

Kong for the purpose of carrying on
the Jewellery Business and holding the
subsidiaries of the Group. Perfect Group
HK allotted and issued 10,000,000 shares
at HK$10,000,000, credited as fully paid,
to Perfect (BVI) as the initial subscriber.

i

&5 BB R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

HWE20165F12H31 H (L4
2. GROUP REORGANISATION AND 2. A I AL B A S R I 2 50

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF e —

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS - continued

Step4:  On 5 August 2015, all the rights and S 0 20154F8HSH - fREFERE [0 R 5F
obligations, assets and liabilities related £ B A5 v 1B U P A L B AR R
specifically to the Jewellery Business TR A ST W H VETT RO R E
carried out by HK Perfect as at the date EVA BN RER] S AT - B E
of the Business Transfer were formally A B AUE £282,103,000%
transferred by HK Perfect to Perfect JC - W ER20164F 1 H4H 78 iU
Group HK for a cash consideration of M A B AL o 5% 55 B BBk
approximately HK$282,103,000, which was BB A ARG B 1 b K
capitalised upon completion of the Group F K IRH150,510,0009 70 LA K 41
Reorganisation on 4 January 2016. Those 17 B 5X84,208,000%5 TG > il H {
assets not related to the Jewellery Business, BIRERE o
including land and buildings and motor
vehicles amounted to HK$150,510,000 and
bank loans amounting to HK$84,208,000,
were retained by HK Perfect.

Step 5: Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery Corp. (“HK % H4 ©  Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery Corp.
Perfect (US)”), Kension Jewelry Co., Ltd. (TR ZEERE (32 H) J) KKension
(“Kension”) and HKP Jewellery Trading Jewelry Co., Ltd. ([ Kension J)
LLC (“HKP (Dubai)”) were deregistered/ MHKP Jewellery Trading LLC
dissolved on 25 August 2015, 4 September (THKP C#15E) 153 Rk 20154F8 A
2015 and 6 September 2015 respectively. 25H ~ 201549 A4 H K201549

H6H s/ -

Step 6:  On 14 December 2015, the shareholders, SN 0 JR20154E12H 14 H - fREE (958
including the Controlling Shareholder, of BE AR M9 R (35 iR
Perfect (BVI) have transferred the entire W) B AR )RR AR R (5 iR
issued share capital of Perfect (BVI) to the RS MEIME BTRA > 1%
Company, satisfied by the Company by way HI A 2% F] LAPE 3% K 3 471008 /i
of allotment and issue of 100 shares to the 137 B R AE AT o
shareholders.

Step 7: On 4 January 2016, global offering of the FEL 0 201681 H4H > BEMA LT

Company’s shares was completed and the
Company’s shares were listed on the Stock

Exchange.

JBe Ay A TR AR AR 2% ) B A W
AP B e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GROUP REORGANISATION AND
BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation described
above, the Company became the holding company
of the companies now comprising the Group on
14 December 2015. The Jewellery Business has
been under the common control of the Controlling
Shareholder throughout the years and before and
after the Group Reorganisation. As a result, the
Group resulting from the Group Reorganisation is
regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the basis as if the Company had always been the
holding company of the Group and the Group had
always been operating the Jewellery Business, using
the principles of merger accounting under Accounting
Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control

Combinations.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statements
of changes in equity and consolidated statements of
cash flows for the years include the results, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Jewellery Business as if
the Company had always been the holding company of
the Group, and the Jewellery Business had always been
operated by the Group and the current group structure
had been in existence throughout the years, or since
the respective date of incorporation, where this is a

shorter period.

D

&5 BB R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first
time in the current year:

Amendments to Accounting for acquisitions of

HKFRS 11 interests in joint operations
Amendments to Disclosure initiative
HKAS 1
Amendments to Clarification of acceptable
HKAS 16 and methods of depreciation
HKAS 38 and amortisation
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer plants
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
Amendments to Investment entities: Applying
HKERS 10, the consolidation exception
HKEFRS 12 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to Annual improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective:

A B R
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

TR BT T A o 1 e ) ([ 9%
S e YR ) L) e A i S
o Y B T — 4

5 38 4 HL 1 R A 280 18 9 T A 9 B 5
e ok e S0 R A o O R o T
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A AR [ Sz S £ LR S 21 A A 4L R
PSR T R 7 v B S o Y S e A v
B e e HI BB RT

HKEFRS 9 Financial instrument!

HKEFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers and the related
amendments'

HKERS 16 Leases?

Amendments to Classification and

HKERS 2 measurement of share-based

Amendments to

HKERS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

payment transactions'
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts’

Sale or contribution of assets

between an investor and its

HKAS 28 associate or joint venture?
Amendments to Disclosure initiative?
HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of deferred tax
HKAS 12 assets for unrealised losses®
Amendments to Annual improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle®
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued
but not yet effective — continued

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and

impairment requirements for financial assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
— continued

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 relevant to the Group

are described as follows:

. in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKERS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words, it
is no longer necessary for a credit event to have

occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and
risk management policies as at 31 December 2016,
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have an
impact on the measurement of the Group’s financial
assets. The expected credit loss model may result
in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets

measured at amortised cost.

3.

A B R
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKEFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related

interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step

approach to revenue recognition:
e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in

the contract

*  Step 3: Determine the transaction price
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” — continued

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

*  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the

entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKEFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as

well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective

reporting periods.

3.

A B R
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

R 5B w8 B e e I (T 4
S T ) e A B
o L) i s — 2

BB B ISR [ REP &
20 W 2 | — A

o HEVUD A AN E A AT S B
52 o fE

o TP EH ML MUE X B AT
(BRA% L) fife 8 i i

AR 7 ol s i o YE RS 15 5% > AR R
SERUE #) FAL Iy (BUZ L) fERB ket > B
% E A0 TAE: B AR B P S G T
PEREICEBETER - MR
e L) 25 15 9% 2t Al 1% DL Y B BE D7 ¥
AEWIFERRE T o BLAL > Fr s BB
e Q55 1SR AL E B i A A ER o

JR20165F > 7 & &AW & M A B A
s SV 5 S o Y )55 15 0 A R A AT
ZAE N BB Y 25 B K AT A R R A 5
Y o

A FEREFM > R H AR A
e o e QI B 1558 AT AE & R B AR 2 Y
B o ORI > 7R ) 38 S TH U ME ) A ik T
5 15 A ) 5 1S B S 3 % i U )
e 8 A9 i i B ) % 4 A AR EE R
7 .



88

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited {5 42 [#] [ P54 % A R 2 )

&5 BB I R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKEFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related

interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKEFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases

of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at costs
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group
currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for
owned use while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing and operating cash

flows, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — continued

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
an asset and a related finance lease liability for finance
lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending
on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if

they were owned.

In contrast lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify

a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by

HKEFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$10,886,000 as disclosed in note 32. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the
application of new requirements may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of financial effect until the
directors of the Company complete a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the results and the
consolidated financial position of the Group.
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&5 BB I R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of each
reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange

for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in

use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its

entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement

date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the

asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out

below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:
*  has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its

returns.
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&5 BB I R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of

control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the

subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

Business combination under common
control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement items of the entities or businesses
in which the common control occurs as if they had
been consolidated from the date when the entities first

came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from
the controlling party’s perspective. No amount is
recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost
at the time of common control consolidation, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s

interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combination under common
control — continued

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income includes the results of
each of the entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the entities first came
under the common control consolidation, where there

is a shorter period.

The comparable amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the businesses had been
combined at the end of the previous reporting period
or when they first came under common controls,

whichever is shorter.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods sold in the normal course of

business and net of discounts and returns.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s

activities, as described below.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered

and title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net

carrying amount on initial recognition.
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&5 BB I R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than land
and buildings, held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or fair value to their residual values over

their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
the year, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Borrowing CoSsts — continued

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress mainly comprises raw materials
and direct labour. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the year, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is

material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it
is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured

reliably.
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&5 BB I R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial

recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at

the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial assets, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest

basis for debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, deposits and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting

policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each year. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency

in interest and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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&5 BB I R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date of the impairment loss is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the group
entities are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the group entities are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis.
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments —
continued

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
bank loans, other borrowing and amount due to a
related party are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of

the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised

in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment

At the end of the year, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which

a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment — continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase

under that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of each year.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse

in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each year and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of each reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of the entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the year, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under exchange
reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign

operation is disposed of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the term.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets

and liabilities, are described below.

5.
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HE20165F12H31 H IEFEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Valuation of trade receivables

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts
based on an assessment on the recoverability of trade
receivables. In determining whether an allowance
for doubtful debts is required, the Group takes
into consideration of the customers’ credit history,
settlement patterns, subsequent settlements and aging
analysis of the trade receivables. Where the expectation
of the recoverability of trade receivables is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and allowance
for doubtful debts in the period in which such estimate
has changed. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is HK$72,395,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$1,980,000)
(2015: carrying amount of HK$116,051,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of nil)).

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value of inventories is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimation
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
These estimates are based on the current market
conditions, estimated selling prices, movements and
subsequent transaction prices of the finished goods.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
these factors. The Group will reassess the estimation
at the end of each year. As at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of inventories is HK$169,221,000
(2015: HK$179,129,000).
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Revenue represents amounts received and receivable
for the sales of fine jewellery products and net of

discounts and returns during both years.

The executive directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker, regularly review
revenue analysis by product types, including ring,
earrings, pendant, bangle, necklace and bracelet, and
by location of delivery to customers. The executive
directors of the Company considered the operating
activities of manufacturing and sales of jewellery
products as a single operating segment. The operating
segment has been identified on the basis of internal
management reports prepared in accordance with
accounting policies conform to HKFRSs, and is
regularly reviewed by the executive directors of the
Company. The executive directors of the Company
review the overall results, assets and liabilities of the
Group as a whole to make decisions about resources
allocation. Accordingly, no analysis of this single

operating segment is presented.

Entity-wide information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by product types is
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2016 2015
20164F 20154
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T 0

Sales of PINIEH RS E 5
— Ring — Ak 105,728 170,982
— Earrings —HIR 92,063 128,548
— Pendant —If B 35,597 51,764
— Bangle — gk 33,211 42,853
— Necklace — JH g 25,899 29,581
— Bracelet —Fi 29,925 34,578

322,423 458,306
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

#E20164F12H31 H 1L
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. Wtk B o E OB —
INFORMATION - continued
Entity-wide information — continued S B R — A
Revenue from external customers, based on location of A H AR T AU B % ) 25 5 A8 A5t b Bl 31 4y
delivery to customers is as follows: LU
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T T#H T
Revenue 0k %5
— Hong Kong — & 187,629 203,476
— Dubai and others — 3 R I HoAth 134,794 254,830
322,423 458,306
No individual customer contributes revenue which A AR A > MR 151 25 5 A AR i s A A 4
accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total B AL £ 10%LA L o
revenue during both years.
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other A B2 ) R Vi B A (R S B IH A BR AN %
than deferred tax assets) by their physical geographical LB R B A B B A AT E
location is as follows:
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’°000 HK$’000
Tt T T
Hong Kong i 3,730 4,474
Mainland China Gl PN 2,721 1,591
Dubai M 377 488

6,828 6,553
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

OTHER INCOME 7. HABWA

2016 2015
20164F 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# e T
Scrap sales JBE B W) G 945 542
Interest income F Bl A 367 2
Others HoAth 126 33
1,438 577

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8. JUAfb s e s

2016 2015
2016%F 20154F
HK$°000 HK$°000
TR T T
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, &Y~ RS K

plant and equipment BTN E A i) 41 (2)
Allowances for doubtful debts AR (1,980) -
Net foreign exchange loss REE 52 Ji 48 15 A8 (112) -
(2,051) (2)

FINANCE COSTS o. W
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR T T
Interest on other borrowing HoAh 2 S 436 -
Interest on bank loans SRATE A S 4 1,458
440 1,458
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

10. B BE wij % A

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T T
Profit before taxation has been arrived W B Al Ve A1 40 B T 31
at after charging: HIHEG
Depreciation Pres
— cost of goods sold —BEE &N RA 952 695
— general and administrative and —— B AT K
other expenses HoAth B 2 1,426 3,734
Total depreciation HreE M 2,378 4,429
Directors’ remuneration (note 11) M4 (B 5EL1)
— fees — ¥4 859 -
— salaries and other benefits — M & K HoAth 4R A 6,473 1,711
— performance-based bonus — B AL AL - 3,435
— retirement benefit scheme contributions — B RAE I E A K 60 54
7,392 5,200
Other staff’ s salaries and other benefits HiAth & T 37 4 K& HAth 45 F 29,716 32,606
Other staff’ s retirement benefits scheme Hifth & T 138 R 48 Al
contributions ) At 3,331 4,190
Total staff costs B T A 48 %8 40,439 41,996
Auditor’s remuneration % S BT B 4 1,700 1,800
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses E WE RS 2 B ST A7 B RA
(included in cost of goods sold) (FFA BB &) 233,479 326,229
Listing expenses (included in general and B S (BEA— % AT B
administrative and other expenses) Fe HoAth B 57) 1,588 16,815
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented AR Y R R
premises GENEE iR 6,254 4,097
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HE2016F12H31 H 1L
11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. HHH 4
The executive directors of the Company were ARNFR R E2015F12H31 H IFFERATH
appointed during the year ended 31 December 2015. TTH S o A A AR B B AT BB AR A Al
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the K EEATHN B 1 FH MR E RS T
directors and the Chief Executive of the Company
during both years are as follows:
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other  Performance- scheme
Fees benefits  based bonus contributions Total
Hak B
4 KA g Al Eafea wh 31t 3% At

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T Tt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #£20164£12/31H 1L 4

Executive directors: AT

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong et - 3,482 - 20 3,502

Ms. Shek Mei Chun hELL L - 1,498 - 20 1,518

M:r. Chung Chi Keung F e - 1,493 - 20 1,513

Non-executive director: FofrES

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus KR A 286 - - - 286
(resigned on 1 March 2017) (7201743 7 1 H BT

Independent non-executive directors: B 3. FE AT # 3t ¢

Mr. Fan Chor Ho YA P 191 - - - 191

Mr. Li Cheuk Wai FEBSEE 191 - - - 191

Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick EVtEitis 191 - - - 191

859 6,473 = 60 7,392
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

HE20164F12H31H IHFE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. 34 — &
— continued
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other  Performance- scheme
Fees benefits ~ based bonus  contributions Total
#aek R4
& HA gl BAfA SR Mt
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #%£2015512H31H L4
Executive directors: BITES
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong e s - 813 1,969 18 2,800
(appointed on 16 June 2015) (201546 A 16H B Z )
Ms. Shek Mei Chun [EES 3 ax - 472 710 18 1,200
(appointed on 19 August 2015) (1A2015%F8 H19H #E % (T)
Mr. Chung Chi Keung FH R = 426 756 18 1,200
(appointed on 19 August 2015) (1420158 H 19 H % L)
Non-executive director: FHGTES
M:r. Chu Kin Wang Peleus RIEE A - - - - -
(appointed on 19 August 2015) (7201548 A 19 H %)
Independent non-executive directors: 3 JF AT i 3 -
Mr. Fan Chor Ho PR R e
(appointed on 14 December 2015) (R20154E12H 14HEZ ) = = = = =
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai FEBE - - - - -
(appointed on 14 December 2015) (782015512 14 H EZAT)
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick ERE A - - - - -
(appointed on 14 December 2015) (R20154F 12 14 HEZ )
- 1,711 3,435 54 5,200
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

— continued

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The performance-based bonus is discretionary
based on the Group’s financial results and directors’
performance as decided by the management of the
Group.

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong is also Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
includes those for services rendered by him as Chief
Executive Officer.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of the non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included 3 (2015:
3) directors of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2016. Details of whose emoluments are

included above. The emoluments of the remaining

highest paid individuals during both years were as

&5 BB R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

11. HY M4 — 4

51

() BUBAEAL A S A S 4 7 4 [ A s 2
B E RN KRB RE o

(i) fEGEAEREA N FTEHAE - BEH
B I 45 28 0 45 FCAT 20 A7 AR AR 4R (IR s P

5 A M < o

(i) bSO AT A < R 1A A
O ) B AR A T R AR R o SO
AT H R B L IR AT R
TS AR By AR A ) SR LR o

EIROA T F PN

HE20164F12H31 H IR4ERE » A& m i A
T = EH (20154 « =f7)  WHEZH
PO et S | S o A T {181 4T B A [ > LR A
AR T

follows:

2016 2015
20164F 20154
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T T

Employees g &
— salaries and other benefits — 4 S HoA 4w A 1,444 1,377
— performance-based bonus —ERAE AL 85 147
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — 3B IRAE A 5 ) 4 3 36 36
1,565 1,560
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#ZE 201651231 H IL4FJE
11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. H Y4 — 4
— continued
Five highest paid individuals — continued oA g5 v B N L — 4
Their emoluments were within the following bands: A DA s Y S
2016 2015
20164F 20154F
Number of Number of
employees employees
& B A\ % T =PN
Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 31,000,000 70 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #5 7T % 1,500,00045 7T - 1
2 2
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the A T AT A7 B T [ - AR 2 (3 AR 8 [ A N D o R
Group to the directors of the Company or the five A e e B N b (RS E R R B) A
highest paid individuals (including directors and S AE £ 0 A A 4E [ B A A 4 (B 4% 1) 2%
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining [ R B 1 3 R s
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None B2 FUAT ] 357 M o

of the directors have waived any emoluments during

both years.
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BE2016F12H31 H IE4FE
12. TAXATION 12. BLM
2016 2015
20164F 2015%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T TIo
The taxation charge (credit) comprises: BIE S (G 5) B4 ¢
Hong Kong Profits Tax s F) 15 B0
— Current year — R 4,028 6,598
— Overprovision in prior years — 8 A R R A - (1,464)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) F B 4 2 BT A5 B
(TZEFT 3L
— Current year — AR 453 463
Overseas tax 16 AN B TH
— Current year — AR - 2,506
4,481 8,103
Deferred tax charge (note 25) PR SE R TH 57 H (B 5E25) 289 1,433
4,770 9,536

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the

estimated assessable profit for both years.

The Group is engaged in manufacturing of fine
jewellery products through a processing factory
in the Mainland China under contract processing
arrangement which is effective from 23 April 2008 to
7 April 2018. Accordingly, under such 50:50 onshore/
offshore arrangement between the Group and the
processing factory, certain profits of the Group are
not taxable under Hong Kong Profits Tax during both
years. In addition, the processing factory of the Group
is subject to PRC EIT at a rate of 25% on the deemed
profit generated in Mainland China. Also, the Group
was subject to certain overseas tax for the sales made in

overseas.

TR AERE > 5 U5 I A5 B 42 Al 5 R R B s A
H16.5%FF 5 o

A 45 B HR 95 18 20084F4 H 23 H £20184F4H 7
H I BIAE B &K T2 e > B h Bk
i fr o AR S S R R R o - U
R4 A 42 3 BN T g 2 150 ¢ oM 7E j7 i
A HE > A% B2 A T A1 4 B 1 A T T R
BN RASRL o LAk > A 0 i T e
A HP B K e 2 A 1 R i R B 25908
A v B A SE T AR B o A 48 [ AN ZE ik 1 i S
H ) 8 B S AR 2 T i AN BT
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

HE2016F12H31 H 1L E
12. TAXATION - continued 12. B — 4
Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the AF A B TE 32 R B AR 4 s R Hth A T i A
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement A R B A IR A SRR R
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:
2016 2015
20164F 20154F
HK$’°000 HK$°000
Tt T
Profit before taxation I%: 54, 7l %25 1) 39,469 65,996
Tax at the applicable income 278 45 B %16.5%
tax rate at 16.5% SCAN 1) R T 6,512 10,889
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A4S FJ 11754 B S 9 B 755 5 %8
purposes 1,831 3,741
Tax effect of income not taxable HEJH BB U 1 B 52 28
for tax purposes (67) oy
Effect of profit under 50:50 arrangement 50 1 50 HE T Y i A1 5 2 (3,959) (6,598)
EIT and overseas tax A 2E P £ B % i A1 B T 453 2,969
Overprovision in prior years 8 A A 38 R - (1,464)
Taxation charge for the year AN B TE S 4,770 9,536
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DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company resolved to declare
an interim dividend of HK$0.03 per share, totalling
HK$13,500,000 for the six months ended 30 June
2016 and was paid on 15 September 2016 to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 31 August
2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, a subsidiary
of the Company distributed interim dividends of
HK$97,000,000 to their then shareholders prior to the

Group Reorganisation.

The directors of the Company recommend a
final dividend of HK$0.03 per share, totaling
HK$13,500,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016
payable on or around Wednesday, 19 July 2017 to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 30
June 2017.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for
the year is based on the consolidated profits for the
year of HK$34,699,000 (2015: HK$56,460,000) and
on the weighted average number of ordinary shares

450,000,000 (2015: 337,500,000) shares.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there

were no potential ordinary shares during both years.

13.

14.

&5 BB R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

JBe B,

AN T R P E IR £20164F6H30H
1B 758 A 2w A i B 49 i%0.03%5 T > & 4t
13,500,000%5 7C > 3 £ 2201649 7 15 H IR
F 18201648 H31 H 4 51 A\ & it # 44 1t 2
AR AR o

BE2015F12H31 H I4EE > AN AR B
5 ) [ S TR A 4B ) AL G A9 B SRR %% R )
% 5£.97,000,000% 7T ©

AN E #E P IR AT B E 2016412 31
H 1k 4F B 2 A i B A %0.03%5 ot > & 3t
13,500,000#5 JC - 3 i iA20174F7H 19H (&
=) SRR IR A T iR 20174F6 H 30 H (B
) 25 AN T B R 2 AR A8 R R

B 7 A

A 4E B (1 A5 1 A 2 R T AR BB 4E N AR S T
F134,699,000% JC (20154F : 56,460,000% IC)
e FnHE SF- 44 3% 78 1£450,000,000/8 (20154F -
337,500,000/8) 5T 5 -

R T 1R 4 32 Sl S T AE I A i > I i B 5
o J 0 2 A o
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&5 BB I R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
HE20165F12H31 H IEFEE
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. Y3E ~ B o5 B s M
EQUIPMENT
Plant Furniture
Land and and and Motor
buildings machinery fixtures vehicles Moulds Total
4 )% 5 K HEK
BF e $E K A At
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T Tt Fibr Tt SR T
Year ended 31 December BE2015F12H31H
2015 Jiid s
At 1 January 2015 2015414 1H
Cost or valuation JAR A 143,173 4,677 14,151 4,737 1,212 167,950
Accumulated depreciation R &1 8 - (3,597) (8,983) (2,838) (1,102) (16,520)
Net book amount BR T (. 143,173 1,080 5,168 1,899 110 151,430
At 1 January 2015 R2015%1H 18 143,173 1,080 5,168 1,899 110 151,430
Additions NE 25 256 742 = 16 1,039
Disposals/write-off HE - - (5) (71) - (76)
Adjustment on revaluation EXLT L 8,347 - - - - 8,347
Depreciation e (2,130) (383) (1,394) (456) (66) (4,429)
Distributions ik (149,415) = = (1,095) = (150,510)
At 31 December 2015 20154 1231H = 953 4511 277 60 5,801
At 31 December 2015 *2015%12H31H
Cost AR = 4,933 14,811 1,946 1,228 22,918
Accumulated depreciation R &M H - (3,980) (10,300) (1,669) (1,168) (17,117)
At 31 December 2015 #2015 12431 H = 953 4,511 277 60 5,801
Representing: R
Cost A = 953 4,511 277 60 5,801
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554 W5 R i
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12H31 H 1L
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. Y13E ~ W55 Be e i — 4
EQUIPMENT - continued
Plant Furniture
and and Motor
machinery fixtures vehicles Moulds Total
B R REREE R PR At

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tt T T T T

Year ended 31 December 2016 BWE20165E 120310 ILEE

At 1 January 2016 #20164£1H 1H

Cost WA 4,933 14,811 1,946 1,228 22,918
Accumulated depreciation 25 e (3,980) (10,300) (1,669) (1,168) (17,117)
Net book amount i I ¥ (A 953 4,511 277 60 5,801
At 1 January 2016 R20165FE1 1R 953 4511 277 60 5,801
Additions NE 99 1,650 902 10 2,661
Disposals ik - (8) = = (8)
Depreciation SN (399) (1,683) (249) (47) (2,378)
At 31 December 2016 A2016%12H31H 653 4470 930 23 6,076
At 31 December 2016 #2016412H31H

Cost WA 5,032 16,448 2,848 1,238 25,566
Accumulated depreciation At E (4,379) (11,978) (1,918) (1,215) (19,490)
At 31 December 2016 A20164%12H31H 653 4,470 930 23 6,076
Representing: i :

Cost WA 653 4,470 930 23 6,076
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

HE2016F12H31 H 1L E

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. P0E ~ WG Be i —
EQUIPMENT - continued
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is Y2~ R KRR T8 SRR EAREENE
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate DA A ELAG 510 ) 47 1A 4 40 L A s A FE =
their cost or fair value to their residual values over FIEREMEWM T ¢

their estimated useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings 40 years or the unexpired 3t R 404F SR JE M AR &
lease term, whichever is the T (DA E A
shorter E)
Plant and machinery 20% per annum Wi = T B HH20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% per annum ELEYS & N H4E20%
Motor vehicles 20% per annum R BHH20%
Moulds 30% per annum HiE HH30%
16. INVENTORIES 16. 71
2016 2015
20164F 2015%4F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
Tt T T
Raw materials JE L R 44,172 51,666
Work in progress TE 35 5,790 8,103
Finished goods R 119,259 119,360
169,221 179,129

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES IVAR-& Y 8RN 1€ ¢l

2016 2015
20164F 2015%F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
Tt T
Trade receivables B 5 WS T 74,375 116,051
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W R R (1,980) =
72,395 116,051

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits At E ISR IE ~ TEAT 3K IH
Y 3,336 10,669

75,731 126,720
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

— continued

The following is an analysis of trade receivable by
age, presented based on the invoice date, which

approximates the respective revenue recognition dates:

&5 BB R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

17. S 5 Be 30 fib ] Wk S — 48

B 55 M P 43 1 4 A - AR
95 A 11 0 26 TR R 0 9 A 2
51 -

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$°000 HK$000

T#T TH#TT

0-30 days 0%30H 15,817 23,351
31-60 days 314860 H 13,350 17,236
61-180 days 61%180H 27,376 53,330
181-365 days 181%£365H 7,896 21,614
Over 1 year —4E b 7,956 520
72,395 116,051

The Group allows a credit period of up to 120 days to
its customers. A longer credit period may be granted to
large or long-established customers with good payment
history.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit control system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the board of directors has
delegated the management to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for
customers. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically. Approximately 31% (2015: 28%) of the
trade receivables as at 31 December 2016 are neither
past due nor impaired and they were assessed to be of
good credit rating attributable under the credit control
system used by the Group.

The Group’s management takes into consideration
of customers’ credit history, settlement patterns,
subsequent settlements and aging analysis of trade
receivables in determining the recoverability of
the overdue trade receivables. The directors of the
Company considered that the concentration of credit
risk is limited due to customer base being large and
unrelated.

AL [ RS R R M 2 fy1200
R B B JRE S AKX ELASEKGRT Bk R A I %0 5 R A
B B A5 S

B AR & F I > AL BT MRS S
RS > B ERFNGERER > #5
IR E R IR E HE A R P SRR
AT B A% - 3l HE AT & LY R
HH o h20164F12H31 H 18 5 BEdGR A+
#131% (20154F © 28%) Sl 42 7 H o¥ Jal (H >
I TR A 45 T8 BT A R ol R A 1 JERTEAN 4
R {5 B A -

7SR 1 L S R U B2 oy R WS R Y T
Wl PR > & 75 & S (S SRd gk~ AT
A HARG A UL H 5 8GR IA I AR i 7>
Bro AARIERZR - MREFHRERKLE
AAE > Bk P A EERA R
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12H31 H IEFEE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. B 5 B 30 b M ok JH — %

— continued

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of H20164F12 31 H & 5 B de sk H o >
HK$49,498,000 (2015: HK$83,689,000) arc past 49,498,000% 7T (20154F  83,689,000#7T) &
due but not impaired. Such receivables relate to a i ARG S > 2 BRI IHEL 2 2K P
number of customers of which substantial subsequent A B > 155 B AR AT K A R U B E -
settlements were made. The Group does not hold any A A (3 5Mf7 e R A AT A R 5 1 2 5% 5 4 R 1Y
collateral as security over these balances. The ageing AP o 5255 B 5 REMGRIE R IR B 0 M i T

analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2016 2015
20164 20154F
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T #5706

Overdue by: iy
1-30 days 1230 H 15,672 20,282
31-60 days 31260 H 9,540 22,424
61-180 days 61%180H 13,809 35,069
181-365 days 181%365H 3,324 5,394
Over 1 year — 4Pk 7,153 520
49,498 83,689

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts of trade

receivables is as follows:

B oy ME WK IE B R SR S S B T

2016 2015

20164 20154F

HK$’000 HK$°000

T T T

At beginning of the year R4 - -
Impairment loss recognised e R B s 1R 1,980 -
At end of the year AR R 1,980 =
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BE2016F12H31 H IE4FE
18. DEPOSITS 18. 4
2016 2015
20164F 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 TIo
Deposit for acquisition of land use right Wi % - b ol R RE 2 e 4
(Note a) ([t 5Ea) 28,250 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of an equity W IR A B 2 B A
investment (Note b) (Bt 5ED) 3,369 -
31,619 -
Notes: [ff sk
(@ The amount represented a refundable deposit (a) A B IE R VLM 1T 2 40 b R A BR A A

(b)

amounting of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$28,250,000) paid by the shareholder of Jiangmen
City Yingtuo Real Estate Planning Co., Ltd (“Potential
Joint Venturer”) on behalf of the Group for jointly
bidding of land use right of a land located at east of
Foshan 1st Ring Road South Extension and south of
Lunjiao Dachong River, Lunjiao Shilong Industrial
Zone, Shunde District, Foshan, Guangdong Province,
the PRC (the “Land”). On 13 January 2017, the
Group entered into an agreement with the Potential
Joint Venturer for the formation of a joint venture
which 70% interest wuld be held by the Group and
30% interest held by the Potential Joint Venturer.

On 15 February 2017, the Group and the Potential
Joint Venturer won the bidding for the land use right
of the Land for the consideration of RMB105,390,000
(equivalent to HK$118,416,000) at the closing of
the online listing-for-sale held by the Shunde Public
Resources Trading Centre, and the deposit was
refunded to the shareholder of the Potential Joint
Venturer from Shunde Public Resources Trading
Centre.

The amount represented a refundable deposit paid for
acquisition of 5% equity interest in a private company
incorporated in the PRC for a jewellery complex
project, with a consideration of RMB2,850,000
(equivalent to HK$3,369,000).

(b)

Z IR (VB S B D) AR A4 3L A
A A v ] R TR L Tl A [ A
i 3 i 1L — B AE AR DA R ORI
DL (5% st 3 )) 2 & Hb (i Fl A 2 2
A5 Al 38 5] 2 4 N B 525,000,000 00 (FH & 7
28,250,000%5 JC) ° A20174F1H13H » A4
B BV AE & 8 W AF 5T S W sk LU B B A
> B AR B R 709 0 15 K VEAE S S
FEFEA 30%HE 45

R20174F2H 15H » A L B ELVELE & B %
P NE AR N 3 U5 58 5 v O B AT 1 48 L 4
i L AR L IR T 45 15 % B .+
BE > A A A R 105,390,00000 (K8 % 7
118,416,00045 70) > i NIE 728 JL E F 22 5
DB VETE A 1% F 0 I HOR [ B4 4 -

B AR ok — TE R A A TE E i —
A FF B A AR AE 2 FA NS T 2 5% R 2 B
A5 T AR ] i o ARAE 2y N R H2,850,0007C
(FH 723,369,000 76)
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BE20164F12H31 H L E

19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19. BATHI R R Bl &
Included in bank balances and cash are the following DLR DA BRI 4E B 1 o e B DL AN G B T
amounts denominated in currency other than EIN &R A RATHE R KB 4

functional currency of the relevant group entities:

2016 2015
20164 2015%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T 0
HKS$ T 63,718 2,223
Dirham P A 7,504 3,986
71,222 6,209
Bank balances and short-term bank deposits which R20164E12 331 H 1Y SR AT &5 8k K A 1 4R 47
carry interests at prevailing market rates ranged from T 3T i s BT 3 B AR R R0.01% £1.2%
0.01% to 1.2% per annum (2015: 0.01%) as at 31 (2015%F 1 0.01%) 5 &
December 2016.
20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. © 5 B H fib BE A7) 3%
2016 2015
20164 20154F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# ot T o0
Trade payables 2 5 BE A 3k IE 6,257 12,099
Accruals and other payables JRE T T B At RE A R TE 24,812 37,779

31,069 49,878
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21.

— continued

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables

presented based on invoice date at the end of each

&5 BB R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

20. B 5 B i JE Ak o — 4

T 2% AR AR TR B 5T H W 2 51 1) B 5 B A S IH I
HR#e AT AT

year:

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T# T
0-60 days 0£260H 6,257 11,251
61-90 days 61%£90H - 775
91-120 days 91£120H - 73
6,257 12,099

BANK LOANS 21. TR
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x TH#IT
Trust receipts loans (EEAE 3 &N 2,365 -

Bank loans denominated in United States Dollars
with repayable on demand clause are classified under
current liability on the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group’s bank loans are payable
within one year based on the scheduled repayment

dates set out in the loan agreement.

The Group’s bank loans are unsecured and carry
annual interest at LIBOR plus 2.5%.

R A 7R 5 R IR SRk ) 58 TC SR AT BE K AE A5
BB OLR IR B B - AL 2R
AT LK 5 B W T T A K R — 4
M -

AKE ] 2 SRAT BN A S PP K 9 A SR A 7[R
PRSI FR2 S EF B, o
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e

23.

OTHER BORROWING

The amount represented an unsecured and
unguaranteed loan from the shareholder of
the Potential Joint Venturer amounting to
RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$28,250,000)
utilised by the Group as deposit for jointly bidding
of the land use right of the Land. The amount was
settled on 7 March 2017 upon the refund of deposit
from Shunde Public Resources Trading Centre to the
shareholder of Potential Joint Venturer. The other
borrowing carry interest at 6% per annum. Please refer

to note 18 for details.

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED
COMPANY

Perfect Group HK entered into a business transfer
agreement with HK Perfect on 26 June 2015. On
5 August 2015, all the rights and obligations, assets
and liabilities related specifically to the Jewellery
Business carried out by HK Perfect were transferred to
the Group for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$282,103,000, and such amount was unsecured,
interest-free and not to demand for repayment on
such amount until 31 December 2016. Perfect Group
HK and HK Perfect agreed that such amount would
be capitalised prior to the Listing on 4 January 2016
by way of loan capitalisation. Accordingly, by way of
a deed of loan assignment dated 14 December 2015
executed by HK Perfect, the aforesaid allottees and
Perfect Group HK, the amount due to HK Perfect
was assigned to the Controlling Shareholder and
subsequently capitalised by allotting and issuing 100
shares of the Company to the Controlling Shareholder
before the Listing.

0%,

23.

A A £

A BRI TEAE G 8 5 1t 2 O i 2 S 4K
1 1 A A58 RN R 925,000,0007T (FH 3 7
28,250,000 70) > FH ASEE B A A 2 [R] 35 % 5%
R 7 b RE 2 14 o A B ERIE 2R IE
RN LB RR G R B L TR A S Y
£ 09 1B HRAZ R 20174E3 H 7 HAE AT o HoAth i £
AR Fewrt B o A MFHEHS MM LS -

WA B 2K 2 ) 5k

15 5% 45 9] 7 ok BEL (R %8 2k BT 10 20154E6 A 26 H
FUOL T R o iA20154F8 HSH » fREE
TR EL ) A 42 () 0 R T A B 0 R T AT
MR EEL AR X BT GERLE
1 > B4 0B 40 £5282,103,000% 7T - A BIZK
AR MARHR - B KA EHRERER > HE
2016%F 12 H31 H 2y 1k o {3548 [ 4 s B R 4%
TR O Wik A B E AR 20164F 1 H4H BTl
BB M SR G ARG A - B (REEK
B (bl R N ) B AR ) A s SR T H O
£520154F12 7 14 H 1 S 3SR 2248 > &5 R AR
B KB BRI O RS T R ROBOR A AR
e T A A ) 2 R I BRI A K BE AT 1001
AN T e 2 T RIBEEA -
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B3 WA B AR Bk
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12H31 H 1L
24. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE 24. T390 005 4 Bk A
PAYMENTS
The provision for long service payments is determined T2 1A IR 6 41 2 75 1 B I 4 J 1k 55 1 IR 5
with reference to the employees’ remuneration and I E
their years of services.
2016 2015
20164F 2015%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
At 1 January W1A1H 936 961
Provision (reversal of provision) for the year A K 5 A (F8% A 35 [l ) 63 (25)
At 31 December R12H31H 999 936
25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 25. BRI E E
The movements in deferred tax assets (liabilities) RN > REBITEEE (AR WEEF :
during the year are as follows:
Accelerated
Provision tax Revaluation
for social  depreciation/ of land
security accounting and
funds  depreciation buildings Total
T3
ERE  BEGE + K
A B it & B A At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T 0 T T
At 1 January 2015 1201541 A 1H 1,196 1,214 (2,905) (495)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss TR (BB HER) 138 (1,571) = (1,433)
Arising from the Business Transfer ST I A - - 2,905 2,905
At 31 December 2015 ®20154£1231H 1,334 (357) - 977
Charge to profit or loss H 18 %2 1 Bk - (289) - (289)

At 31 December 2016 201612431 H 1,334 (646) - 688
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016
BE20164F12H31 H L E

25.

26.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - continued

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax

assets and liabilities have been offset.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company was incorporated and registered as an
exempted company in the Cayman Islands on 16 June
2015 with an issued share capital of US$100 divided
into 100 shares of a nominal value of US$1 each.
Upon incorporation of the Company, 100 shares of
US$1 each was issued at US$100. On 14 September
2015, the Company repurchased all the existing shares
for an aggregate price of US$100, following which all
the existing shares were cancelled and the authorised
but unissued share capital of the Company was
diminished by the cancellation of all unissued shares
of nominal value of US$1 each in the share capital
of the Company, and the authorised share capital of
the Company became HK$10,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 shares of nominal value of HK$0.01
each. As at 31 December 2015, the Company had 200
issued and fully paid ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each,
amounted to HK$2.

On 4 January 2016, as part of the Group
Reorganisation, pursuant to the listing of the shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange, 100 shares,
337,499,700 shares and 112,500,000 shares of the
Company were issued to the then existing shareholders
as a result of the loan capitalisation, capitalisation issue
and the global offering respectively. The Company
completed its global offering and its shares were listed

on the Stock Exchange on 4 January 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has
450,000,000 (31 December 2015: 200) issued and
fully paid ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. All shares
issued rank pari passu with the then existing in issue in

all respects.

25.

26.

3B St B U0 — 4

R A M BAR L BT &+ % FARIER
TR T A -

&

S

AN FR20154E6 A 16 H 78 B 2 BE S 55 %
S RCEFL AR R A  BEEATIRAS 5100
ETC 0 4 A 1008 B BT (B 1 35 T Y Bl o A
28 A RS R 100 B4 S T (R 135 T Y A
B B HE 10055 TEEEAT © R20154F9 14H - A&
N ) i KB AE A5 10035 o0 8 18] T A B A ]
37 HAR B8 T A B By o AN E A R
o B AR oy \) B AS o A R T (B3R 6 Y A
A BEAT I I I Lk E R B AT A > i
AR\ ) 1932 5 AR £510,000,00095 T8 5 4 4
1,000,000,000/% %5 i 111 {E0.01 %5 7T 1Y B A ©
2015412431 H » A2 & H2008% & K 1
{E0.01%5 TG 1 O 4847 MR L ik - &L 5
25 TG ©

=

R20165F1 4 H > BREB EALSS » RIFAL
A A A B o2 T BTl DR AT R A AR
AR AL B AT Mo B EREE B 1T 40 B 84T 1008
337,499,700/ 5 112,500,000 A8 2 7] B4 T
IR BA R o AN R 2 IR20164F1 3 4H
58 J 4 BREE AR B I 4y A W B i BT e

#20164F12H31H » A R4 450,000,000
(2015412 A 31 H : 200/%) & HI{H0.01 #5570
Z BT BB S AR o BT B AT IR AR
A A 5 T ) B R IR B B AT R = A A
EhEgs o
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to owners through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged over the

years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising share
capital, share premium, retained profits and other
reserves as disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure regularly. The Group considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital, and will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as
well as the raising of bank borrowings.

& BB R Bk
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

27. HK B A A

ZIK%@%EEEEZFUEE{%ZF%%T% T

BACE > (R I 2530 (A A B i 1 A
Z—%%ﬁ)\ﬁﬂi?jﬁﬁli& A [ 1) R SR
T 6% 55 A R AR A o

AR 1Y B A T e AR I A A A B
AL > BLAE AR SV 5 3R BT 4R R A B A~ i
7 1B~ DR A Vi A1) B Al f 44

ASE B B & E AT B AR o AL
@%Jﬁé‘ﬂﬁﬁiﬂi&%ﬁﬁgﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ@’
Sl A 275 2 YR AT R, - B AT B AR AR AT
o u%é‘q,ﬁf“@ﬁ@fézﬁ g1 o

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. MBI H
Details of the significant accounting policies A5 BB T e BABS B BRI B EEOR g
and methods adopted, including the criteria for FHEOR KO ¥ (LG AR AR e - S e
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on il RS BE S (0 S5 8 ) SR A B 4 A B
which income and expenses are recognised, in respect # o
of each class of financial assets and financial liabilities
are disclosed in note 4.
Categories of financial instruments B T H %5
2016 2015
20164F 2015%F
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T
Financial assets % & e
Loans and receivables (including cash B R
and cash equivalents) @;ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁ%) 306,855 157,497
Financial liabilities W £
Amortised cost e 4 £ A AR 61,684 331,981
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. W T H—&

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, bank loans, other
borrowing and amount due to a related company.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Currency risk

The Group has limited currency exposure as at
majority of the revenue were denominated in
functional currency of the relevant group entities.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end

of the reporting date are as follows:

St 5 L B A P AR B SR

SR ) 2 B T ORELAE B B e A R
IE -~ e AT RS - B 5 LA
FEAST BRI ~ SRAT BT ~ At £ 0 B M AT 2
2N RLERIE o 5255 FHE L EL BRI R 5 AR B Bt
Ak NS o AT IR % 5 B T L 10 LBy L 4
55 B (B35 B B B A L)~ £ R
o % i B L e o AT I e AR % S Bt
P SERC R TR T 3C o L A L I A A% AR A
B o DA £ B IhF I A R0 it 78 1 i

B B

PR 7 A 2 I DK 473 e it A A B 4 P 119 2
REEC M RTE > TR AR 2 1 o T 3 1) 0 T L P
AR o RHEHIR > AEMUSNETHEN &
g E XA BRI ERI T

2016 2015
20164 20154F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 Tt
Assets G
Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$”) ot (Tt l) 63,718 2,223
Renminbi (“RMB”) NE¥ (T ARY]) 32,291 528
United Arab Emirates Dirham (“Dirham”) o] B G et 37 4 ([ 70 7 1 ) 7,504 3,986
Liabilities =R
HKS$ It 2,571 223
RMB N 28,250 A
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
g
policies — continued

Currency risk — continued

The Group mainly exposes to foreign currency of
RMB, HK$ and Dirham, which are arising from
relevant group entities’ foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities for the Group’s
operating activities. HK$ and Dirham, however,
are pegged to the functional currency of respective
group entities (i.e. US$), hence the Group’s exposure
to currency risk is not significant and no sensitivity
analysis has been presented. No sensitivity analysis for
the currency risk of RMB is prepared as the directors
of the Company consider the net impact of such

foreign currency risk is insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate other borrowing (see note 22
for details) and cash flow interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial
assets and liabilities, mainly interest-bearing bank
balances and bank borrowings at variable interest
rates. The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should

the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation on London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) arising from the Group’s

United States dollar denominated borrowings.

&5 BB R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

28. W% T H — 4

S 255 J B A B R % SR — A

5 L B — A

7S S [ 1) 8 /85 375 38 P DA 5 4 I DA A
at (B A B BB R A B ] T T
N B~ o K o 48 A B M Ja B o AR T
T Rt i 4 B2 42 ) 2 R 1 T e R (B
SET0) 4 > AN A ] T B R B R g Sl S
K> Bl 25 U A o R A R
E AV DN DR 2 N S
A i AT IR L Bt 1Y B R A0 AT

A 2

A G W R E S HL A i (R LR RE22) T
TR 32 8 ST BRI 3 L B B wt B B B E R A
R (T 2 5 45 7 B ) 2 5 B9 4R AT 45 88 S8R
AT i ) ) S 43 B 1Y) 5 28R T 7R 2 B4 U A
AR o AL ) H Al A A B PR > R
T > A PR & A e IR R i EE M
JE g o

A 18 1Y B 4 L 8 1 5 By R B AR R R A
PR R £ 3 A 5% T (L T T 3 F) s 28R A T 7] 36
PR B ([ BORAT R 57 8 ) e -
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. W T H—&

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
g
policies — continued

Interest rate risk — continued
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the year. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the year were outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 basis points increase or decrease
in interest rates on bank loans and a 10 basis points
increase or decrease in interest rate on bank balance are
used which represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing bank balances had
been 10 basis points and interest rates on interest
bearing bank loans had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all of other variables were held constant, the
profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
approximately increase/decrease by HK$176,000
(2015: increase/decrease by HK$40,000).

St 755 B B B H R % SR — A

7] 2R JE B — A8
R IE 77 T

DL S0 BE 2 M AR 47 R JE AT AR T R R %
JEUBGE 88 A o 43 WIT 2 AR R4 R 10 oA T B 1) WA 7
T EL A e AR 3 1 A T T A R > 43 LR A AR
A7 B KA 2 B SRAT &5 R A1l 2210011 55 B X 10
A 35 225 1) TR SR > DA AR B B S R o
£ P A] B S B 1) RRA

W wE B SRAT 45 8 K w5t B S8R4T 8 3K 1 FIl 2 43
A = FF R B0 3 B K 10018 3 B 5 1 Bip
A H A B B R A S > Al 2 20164E 12 31
1k 4F BE 0 36 A1 38 5822 176,0009 T
(20154F = 34 fm /4 40,000% 7C) -
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations at the end of each year in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. Given the long-term
relationships with its customers and the financial
position of these customers, management considers
that the credit risk associated with balances due
from wholesale customers is low. In addition, the
management considers the customers’ credit history,
settlement patterns, subsequent settlements and
aging analysis of trade receivables in determining the
allowance for doubtful debts and ensures that adequate
allowance for doubtful debts are made for irrecoverable
amount. In this regard, the directors of the Group
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in trade receivables, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal as such

amounts are placed in banks wi ood reputation.
placed in banks with good rep

&5 BB R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

28. Wh# T H — 4

S 255 J B A B R % SR — A

e B LB

i3 40 75 R RE A 4% 4 R JBAT 055 10 304 - AN
A T R 2 JE B 5 T ) B R A
B 2% % 5 B i A B A B AR L 2 1A 19 L A B
T E o b T 3RS SR o A 4 A
JE LR R o B R E R R R
B R A B Y AR BRI AE AT B
PAiE i ) fROH o R A R LR S R AL
B BRAR S % 2 R P B B AR DL B R
7 T Bl WO HE B R 5 B0 &5 B 09 15 B LB AR
1% - BLoh > EHEE B R F s Sk - |
F07 2 HARSE G UL % B 5y B SCGR JE Y B
B 0 A7 78 E R AR A - AR OR LS AT i [m]
R R AR IR o it > AR HE R
5 T R W K A 4 B 19 £ SR,

AR A B2 oy IR WSk I 48 O 4 R R
B - A B o) M 2 45 B A T o

F A SRAT 45 BR A7 WO {5 B R AP R aRAT > Ik
SRAT &5 B B 5 B8 B bR A -
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. WH T H —4f
— continued
Financial risk management objectives and 0 %5 R B PR H B S BUR — A
policies — continued
Liquidity risk Ui B & 4
The management of the Group has built a liquidity A AE [ R B A T B A A B AR
risk management framework for managing the 2 DIEHARLEEN P ENES RREES
Group’s short and medium-term funding and liquidity BEFEOR o AR FZ 1 BT SR AT Bl A B A A
management requirements. The Group manages W5 S T ) T B R PR A v e N L R B
liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and HAMEDL > DL B U B e A o

by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual
cash flows and the maturity profiles of its financial

liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining TR FE A 4 At H A AW AR S A
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The HABR o T AR 45 4 4= (3] AT 1 B 2R 4 ) e
table has been drawn up to reflect the undiscounted H 8 E - DU WA BB R B B 400
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest o NEMFOEMEAALSH SR & -

date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  or less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year cash flows amount
AR
T F- 3 gZAR RINBBE
ME —FREE i & A W 1l i
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

% T T Tt

Financial liabilities W 5 £ 15
At 31 December 2016 201651231 H
Trade and other payables 5 5 B H A R A 3OH = 31,069 31,069 31,069
Bank loans AT R 1.08% 2,365 2,365 2,365
Other borrowing HoAt £ £ 6% 28,250 28,250 28,250
61,684 61,684 61,684
At 31 December 2015 2015412 A 31 H
Trade and other payables B 5 B HAth e A 30H - 49,878 49,878 49,878
Amount due to a related company {7 B 4> 7] A - 282,103 282,103 282,103

331,981 331,981 331,981
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
g
policies — continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Note:

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31
December 2016, the aggregate carrying amounts
of these bank loans amounted to HK$2,365,000.
Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors of the Company do not
believe that it is probable that the borrower and
the bank will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such bank loans will be
repaid within one year after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that
time, the undiscounted cash outflow amounted to

HK$2,389,000 (2015: nil) at 31 December 2016.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

is determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the

carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities

recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values at the end of

each reporting period.

A B R
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

28. WA¥ T H — 4

S 255 L B A B R % SR — A

E & &R By — 4
B DL LB H 8T A > AT A L B R
A SRAT BT A [ ZE Hc B R
A — 4F A 38 | RO IR R 46 [ A o 2016
F12H31H > ZERITEXIREAE A
2,365,000%k 7T o 7 K A 4 [ 1 B B R
W > AR ) 3 25500 S M AF £ N e R AT
A 8 A7 ol LY 7 A DA B2 0K RIIRE 4R GK -
AN F B MG - w255 AT B O R
T Tt ST ) T 2 K H R R
RAE—4F N R o E I > R20164F 121
31 H ) % [ BB 4 3 HH A £52,389,0005
JC (20154F : #§) o

BB T S0 4 A

VA5 B R AR A (AR 45 1 R A
Wy E A AIZ I BB S B T B E -

AN FEEGE R o T A BN &5 5
B T Y SV A S R R TR (B AR Y
A IR B~ EAE
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29.

30.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employees are required to contribute
5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 and they can choose to make additional
contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions
are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries
or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory
contributions”). The employees are entitled to 100%
of the employer’s mandatory contributions upon their

retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

The employees of the Group’s factory in Mainland
China are members of a state-managed retirement
benefit plan operated by the government of Mainland
China. The Group are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement

benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Pursuant to written resolutions passed on 14
December 2015, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share
Option Scheme was valid for a period of 10 years

commencing on 14 December 2015.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the

Group.

29.

30.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

— continued

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors of
the Company may, at its discretion, grant options
to subscribe for shares in the Company to eligible
participants (“Eligible Participants”) who contribute
to the long-term growth and profitability of the
Company. Eligible Participants include (i) any
employee (whether full-time or part-time including
any executive director but excluding any non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
entity (“Invested Entity”) in which any member of the
Group holds an equity interest; (ii) any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (iv) any customer of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological
support to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (vi) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (vii) any adviser (professional or
otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or
business development of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; and (viii) any other group or
classes of participants who have contributed or may
contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance
or other business arrangement to the development and

growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under this scheme and any other
share option schemes adopted by the Group shall not
exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in

issue from time to time.

&5 BB R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12H31 H IEFEE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 30. DLIB By 32 A ko —

— continued

The total number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
this scheme and any other share option of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of passing of the relevant resolution

adopting this scheme.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any twelve-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance

in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors of
the Company, save that such period shall not be
more than ten years from the date of the offer of
the share options, subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme.
Unless otherwise determined by the Directors at
their absolute discretion, there is no requirement of
a minimum period for which an option must be held
before an option can be exercised. In addition, there is
no performance target which must be achieved before

any of the options can be exercised.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

— continued

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors of the Company, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer
of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s

shares on the date of the offer.

No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since its effective date
on 14 December 2015 and there was no outstanding

share option as at 31 December 2016.

No share-based payment expense was recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2016 in relation to share
options granted by the Company.

The total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme as at the date of this
report is 45,000,000 which represented 10% of the

Company’s share in issue as at that date.

&5 BB R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

30. DAIe By S Ak B — 4
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

HE20165F12H31 H IEFEE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. BT &5
The Group had the following transactions with related A AL B A A A BB B T AT LR A

parties during the years:

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T U
Rental expenses paid to entities under 1] A% 2\ H] — 4% S 4 Y
controlled by a director of the Company B8 S A A 4 B 4,464 1,450
Key management personnel include directors of the F RN BTG AN B [ 2 K A 4 ] Y
Company and other senior management of the Group. HoA B SRS TS o AR A B A B RE A 3R A
The remuneration paid or payable during the years are T
as follows:
2016 2015
20164 20154F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T #& 70
Short-term benefits 5 1 4 9,891 7,772
Post-employment benefits ik 7% 4 A 131 127
10,022 7,899
The remuneration of key management personnel B X PNI=F - W/ KN B X N
is determined by the management of the Company BB BT -

having regard to the performance of individuals and

market trends.
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32. OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payables under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of office premises, factory buildings and motor

vehicles as follows:

&5 BB R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

32. MEBME AR

A B2 [ AR GRS T GRS A T A A = - iR
33 R T I T EE Y A 3R o K B A1 AL B R TH AR R
LU

2016 2015

20164 20154F

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T

Within one year — 4R 7,316 6,284
After one year but within five years —EBERERN 3,570 9,386
10,886 15,670

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December
2016 included commitment to entities controlled by a
director of the Company amounted to HK$7,211,000
(2015: HK$9,401,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain office premises, factory buildings
and motor vehicles. Leases are negotiated for terms of

one to five years.

R20164E12 H 31 H 1Y K88 0 4 A& 35 (0.4 1 i
AN ] 47 v 2 A ) B R R R 357,211,000
W JT (20154F ¢ 9,401,000% 7C) ©

R B SR A S B E T A=Y
TR B B B T B A A L > AR I i AELAC
FHH—BIAF -
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

#ZE 201651231 H IL4FJE
33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. A0 v W& 4 v g

OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which are HA20164F12 31 H &20154F12H31H > AR

limited liability companies, at 31 December 2016 and A B (3 2 A R A R w1 S AN

31 December 2015 are as follows: Ik

Proportion of
Place of nominal value
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid of issued capital/
registration/ share capital/registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations and paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
ak L/ CRIRAREA/ AR IR LR AT A/
WA 4 it/ kIt A2 Ak s A B FEEH
2016 2015 Directly Indirectly
2016 20155 Hf Wik
2016 2015 2016 2015
0168 20155 20165 2015F
% % % %

Perfect Group Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Designing, manufacturing
International Holdings Fi HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 and exporting of fine
(HK) Limited LR gl jewellery

(REEMBIER (Fib) 10,000,000 7¢ 10,000,000 72 et > R R
AL HAEERE

Perfect Group China Hong Kong Ordinary shares - - - 100 - Not yet commence
Holding (HK) Limited i HK$10,000 business

Lk A e B
10,0008 76

Perfect Group China Hong Kong Ordinary shares - - - 100 - Not yet commence

Investment (HK) Limited i HK$10,000 business
Tk A
10,0008 70

Perfect Group International BVI Ordinary shares Ordinaty shares 100 100 - - Investment holding
Holdings Limited ERELHE US$$10,000 US$10,000 b8 el

REEHRRERARAR Wi Lk

10,0005 10,0005 G

Perfect Group China BVI Ordinary shares - - - 100 - Investment holding

Holding Limited ERETHE U$510,000 RERK
Lk
10,0005

Perfect Group China BVI Ordinary shares - - - 100 - Investment holding

Investment Limited REELHE U$810,000 R
Tk
10,000% 75

Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery Dubai Ordinary shares Ordinaty shares - - 100 100 Logistics and marketing

DMCC ik AED50,000 AED30,000 activites
HIE 50,000 FE 50,000 mi R

B 3 i P 1 R
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For the Year ended 31 December 2016

#E20164F12H31 H I
34. MAJOR NON-CASH 34, MRKFEBERY

TRANSACTIONS
During the year, as mentioned in note 18, the A AN EE 18 TR 5 YEAE A A I %
deposit for the jointly bidding of land use right of the R ARA R Bt 3L ] 35 B az 3 2 - bl
Land amounting of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to FHRE 1] I A8 I E VR A 5 WD AR 8 NR
HK$28,250,000) was paid by the shareholder of the #525,000,00070 (FH ¥ i~ 28,250,000%5 7G) °
Potential Joint Venturer to Shunde Public Resources
Trading Centre on behalf of the Group.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, as mentioned B E2015F12H31 8 1k 4 > w9 bt 5E23
in note 23, a business transferred agreement was signed frat > B 201546 H 26 H 51 57 26 5 14 3 17
on 26 June 2015 and such Business Transfer was ko A B SE TS B 2 OR20154E8 H S H 58
completed on 5 August 2015. Those assets not related B o R%AF R B TR T ES N N AHBE - BE L
to the Jewellery Business, including land and buildings Hh R M VR H150,510,0009 76 DA R 8847 &
and motor vehicles amounted to HK$150,510,000, #K84,208,0004 7T > W R EEER B (R B -

and bank loan amounting to HK$84,208,000, were
retained by HK Perfect.
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Bk B W B A B

For the Year ended 31 December 2016

#WE2016F12H31 H IE4FE
35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 35. A i) W BEIR Bk
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
2016 2015
20164 20154F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T T
Non-current asset IF Ui B G
Investment in a subsidiary T B 2 ] Y % 282,259 78
Current assets )
Other receivables and prepayments H Al 8 Sk T R T A R OE 241 5,597
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFRE Az o Jag§ 2 ) K T 64,415 -
Bank balances SRAT &S B 62,256 8
126,912 5,605
Current liabilities i p=Ki
Accruals and other payables JRE it B L Ath 8 £+) 3 5,352 7,305
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A5 i JB5 2 7] KB 156 15,106
5,508 22,411
Net current assets (liabilities) TME AR (A ) FRE 121,404 (16,8006)
Total assets less current liabilities & AR E WO B A 403,663 (16,728)
Share capital and reserves e A B f
Share capital A 4,500 =
Reserves fits A 399,163 (16,728)
403,663 (16,728)
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

A B R
For the Year ended 31 December 2016
#E2016%F12H31 H L4EE

35. 7 2 v IR DL % — 4

— continued
Movement in the Company’s reserves AR 2y W) 2Z fifs i 52 B
Share Special  Accumulated
premium reserve  profit (losses) Total
Z it i A
i A %6 A5 W ) £ (K 148) At
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T#x T#x T#oc
Loss and total comprehensive N e 4R % 4 T B S AR
expense for the year - - (16,806) (16,806)
Arising from the Group EEEHEL
Reorganisation 2 76 - 78
At 31 December 2015 201541231 H 2 76 (16,806) (16,728)
Profit and total comprehensive A A i 1) B 4 T O i AR
income for the year - - 56,825 56,825
Loan capitalisation (note 23) EHEAR (Fak23) - 282,103 - 282,103
Issue of shares BAT A 103,500 - - 103,500
Share issue expenses Je 44547 BH 2 (9,662) - - (9,662)
Capitalisation issue of shares EARAC AT IR - (3,375) - (3,375)
Dividend (note 13) SN (BF3E13) - - (13,500) (13,500)
At 31 December 2016 *20164£12H31 H 93,840 278,804 26,519 399,163
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Financial Summary

bk 5 ok 2

The following is a summary of the published results and RS A SR P A 1 TR B AR TR 2
assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial B BCE E K B R - B 20124F - 20134F K
years. The financial information for the years ended 31 20144F B9 JA 05 B RH T 1 8%k B A2 W) H 83 /520154F
December 2012, 2013 and 2014 are extracted from the 12722 H BRI TR o

prospectus of the Company dated 22 December 2015.

For the years ended 31 December
BWEI12H31H L4
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
20164F 2015%F 20144F 20134F 20124F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000
Tt THs T T Hs T T #670 T #670

Revenue W i 322,423 458,306 516,154 536,293 542,831
Gross profit T 88,944 132,077 150,505 160,958 125,280
Profit for the year A 1A i A 34,699 56,460 90,439 107,049 80,980

As at 31 December
i*12H31H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
20164 20154 20144F 20134F 20124F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000
T 0 T T Tt T #5o0

Total assets B AE 486,654 354,588 553,822 430,232 306,142
Total liabilities BEAH 73,714 339,913 192,535 79,287 106,128

Net assets A 412,940 14,675 361,287 350,945 200,014
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